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On behalf of the board of directors (the “Board” or the “Directors”) of
China New Economy Fund Limited (the “Company”), | am pleased to
present the Company's annual results for the year ended 31 December
2074 (the "Year").

The Company is a closed-ended investment company established on 1
February 2010. By investing in both private and public enterprises
supported by the new economies of Greater China, the Company is
devoted to achieving long-term capital appreciation for professional
investors.

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

During the Year, the Company maintained a long-term investment
strategy in both public and private equity markets. The Company held
eighteen investments in listed companies and one private equity fund in
the Cayman Islands as of 31 December 2014, in which the largest one
is in the information technology sector focusing on Hong Kong and
Mainland China markets. The Company reported net profit attributable
to shareholders of HKS$136,337,823 during the Year, which consisted of
the net change of unrealized gain of HKS185,975,654 taken on the
investment positions in the portfolio.

The net asset value of the Company increased during the Year despite
the slowdown in the China economy and the tapering of the US Federal
Reserve's monetary stimulus programme. As of 31 December 2014, the
Company reported an unaudited net asset value of approximately
HKS$0.88 per share. The upswing was due to unrealized mark to market
gain of HK$185,975,654 taken on the investment positions in the
portfolio offset by realized loss of HKS$12,437,353. The Company will
continue to monitor investments cautiously and expect a surge in its
valuation as market conditions improve.

BUSINESS REVIEW AND PROSPECT

During the Year, the PRC Government deepened its structural reform
aiming to create a healthy social environment for a sustainable yet
efficient economic growth. According to the National Bureau of
Statistics, China’s gross domestic product (GDP) recorded an increase
of 7.4% in 2014, slightly lower than 7.5% targeted by PRC Government
in the beginning of 2014, however in line with the market expectation as
the government has indicated that the PRC economy has entered into a
new normal era featured with medium growth rates and economic
structure optimization driven by technology advance and institutional
innovations.

Chairman’s Statement
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Chairman’s Statement

EREmE

The benchmark Shanghai Composite Index jumped 53.35% from a year
earlier, while Hang Seng Index edged up 1.23% in 2014. During the year,
the Company adopted a timely and appropriate investment approach in
response to the volatile market sentiment and complicated government
policies, and to detect investment opportunities emerging from the
sectors benefiting from the economic transformation in PRC, to obtain
a substantial net asset appreciation. The Company will continue to
implement its comprehensive risk management strategy with an aim to
achieve stable returns on investments for our shareholders.

During the Year, the Company has invested one private equity
investment specialized in the development and operation of mobile
games, which the Company believes will bring a sizeable long term
return. In the near future, the Company will continue to look for further
investment opportunity in private equity.

Thanks to the monetary easing, global economy is struggling to recover.
The Company expects that the US Federal Reserve will be more
cautious to raise interest rate. In addition, the PRC Government has
lowered its 2015 GDP growth target at around 7%, focusing on quality
over quantity as it overhauls its growth model. Therefore, the Company
remains cautiously optimistic on the prospects of securities market in
China and Hong Kong.

The Company will continue to deploy an investment strategy focusing
on Greater China and closely monitor changes in the global markets.
With our professional investment and risk management team, we are
confident to capture valuable investment opportunities to maximize
profit for our shareholders.

Craig Blaser Lindsay
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Hong Kong, 27 March 2015
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, Management Discussion and Analysis
> BIE BT AT

INVESTMENT REVIEW RE O E

The Company held nineteen investments as of 31 December 2014, ZARATN 201412 A31 BFE+HIBERE
comprising eighteen equity securities listed in Hong Kong and one  E/FRE#E+/\ERES FMHERESEN—E
private equity fund in the Cayman Islands. RASHENLERERES -

Pursuant to the requirements stipulated in Rule 21.12 of the Rules BB HEAS EmHRAT EmRAD &
Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (the ‘Listing 2112 & EJBARIIRE - AR BIRBEE THEHE A
Rules"), the Company discloses its ten largest investments and all  #%& RFTE EBEBORNATLEESRHIRE
individual investments with value exceeding 5% of the Company's gross ~ 3ERIFRE A RIAE LT ¢

assets with brief description of the investee companies as follows:

At 31 December 2014 M2014512831H
Listed equity securities — Hong Kong thERES - BB
Dividend
Proportion Netasset  received/ % of gross
Particular of  of investee's Unrealized attributable  receivable assets
Place of issued capital Market ~ gain/(loss) to the during of the
Name of investee incorporation shares held owned Cost value recogn;é%q Company theyear ~ Company
A
Ll RER REEE  HALT
‘ _FEE  REAR ‘ W/ k09 Bk/  sEE
FIRENRER AL BRHFE  EARLp RA i (B8 EREEERE BURS BAtt
(Note T) (Note 2)
(Hsz1) (M2)
HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000
TEL T TAT T
(a) Finsoft Corporation The Cayman Islands 173,650,000 4.34% 32125 209,248 177123 HK$2.62 million - 4385
ordinary shares of
HK$0.0005 each
(Note 4)
e HenE 173650000 5% 26200007
BREE
0.0005 87T
£38/8
(i)
(b)  China Mobile Games and The Cayman Islands 300,006,000 12.02% 33,682 57,601 23919 HKS29.31 million - 12.07
Cultural Investment Limited ordinary shares of
HKS0.01 each
PREETCREAERAT HERE 300,006,000 29310,000% 7
BRAE
001
BRI
(c)  Town Health International Bermuda 22,236,000 0.44% 28191 27128 (1,063) HK$5.26 million - 5.69
Medical Group Limited ordinary shares of
HKS0.01 each
ERAREEEEARAT @AEE 22,236,000 1% 526000077
BREE
0017
BRI

7 FEMCEREBRAT /1 2014



Management Discussion and Analysis

B E WD

Dividend
Proportion Netasset  received/ % of gross
Particular of of investee's Unrealized attributable  receivable assets
Place of issued capital Market ~ gain/(loss) to the during of the
Name of investee incorporation shares held owned Cost value recogniéed Company theyear ~ Company
5}
ERH RER RAEE  {ALH
fiBE  RENA Wi L g/ BeE
FRENFER FRALES BARAFEE  EALA S e (B8) EUEEERE EBUERS Aatt
(Note 1) (Note 2)
(Fsx1) (M32)
HKS000  HKS000  HKS000 HKS000
TAT T TR T
(d) BBILife Sciences The Cayman Islands 11,079,000 211% 19,584 18,502 (1,082)  RMB10.43 million - 388
Corporation ordinary shares of
HKS0.01 each
BBI £ AR EARAT meEs 11079000 % ARE
BRER 104300007
0017
BRI
(e)  JunYang Solar Power Bermuda 100,500,000 2.26% 18,741 18,090 (651)  HKS$26.34 million - 379
Investments Limited ordinary shares of
HKS0.01 each
ERABKE HIEE B 100,500,000 26,340,000 %7
BRAA SHER
0018
EBR
(f)  Nanjing Sinolife United The People’s Republic 10,000,000 1.19% 21,075 15900 (5175)  RMBT.47 million - 333
Company Limited of China H shares of
RMB 0.1 each
R B R PEARLRE 10,000,000 ARH
ERAT BRAEE 74700007
AREOIT
ZHR
(@) DX.com Holdings Limited The Cayman Islands 100,000,000 1.78% 17,262 13100 (4152) HK$3.08 million - 275
ordinary shares of
HKS0.01 each
DX.comZRBR AT Heme 100,000,000 3,080,000 87T
BIRAE
00137
LEBR
(h)  Hong Kong Education (Int) ~ The Cayman Islands 60,000,000 3.68% 7339 7020 (319)  HKS10.68 million - 147
Investments Limited ordinary shares of
HKS0.1 each
EENE (BR)BE MERE 60,000,000 10,680,000 7
$EERAT SREE
0.1%TT
(i) New Ray Medicine Bermuda 14,288,000 1.49% 8,030 7,001 (1,029) HK$4.52 million - 147
International ordinary shares of
Holding Limited HKS0.01 each
HuBEERs BEE 14,28@%0%% 4520000787
INE
BRATF 001 %
China New Economy Fund Limited / Annual Report 2014 8



‘Management Discussion and Analysis
B IE BT wm B AT

Private Equity Fund — The Cayman Islands REREED - HEHS
Dividend
Proportion Netasset  received/ % of gross
Particular of of investee's Unrealized attributable  receivable assets
Place of issued capital Market  gain/(loss) to the during of the
Name of investee incorporation shares held owned Cost value recognized Company theyear ~ Company
&)+
ERR RER RAEE  {EALH
fEEsRfT  REQR i/ RAEEE B/ HERE
FRENTER FMALES REBFE  ERLA RE e (B8) EEFE  EURE Bk
(Note 1) (Note 2)
(M) (M32)
HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS000
ThL Fitn Thr Fitn
() Hydra Capital SPC The Cayman 3,750 16.74% 37,500 37522 22 HKS37.52million - 7.86
Islands
Hydra Capital SPC HEES 37,520,000 ¢

9 FEFEEIR A BRAR / 1R 2014



Management Discussion and Analysis
B I B 5w B

At 31 December 2013

DT

Listed equity securities — Hong Kong

M 20135F12A31H

Lz ESF — &

Dividend
Proportion Netasset  received/ % of gross
Particular of of investee's Unrealized attributable  receivable assets
Place of issued capital Market  gain/(loss) to the during of the
Name of investee incorporation shares held owned Cost value  recognized Company theyear ~ Company
BH#3
BEH RER REEE  BALT
FRERT  RERA &/ KRR B/ heE
FRENAER Bl e BHBFE  ERLA RA e (B8) EERE  ERRE Bk
(Note 3) (Note 2)
(MizE3) (M32)
HKS000  HKS000  HKS000 HK$'000
TEL TER TEL TER
Dongjiang Environmental The People's Republic 389,450 0.17% 7159 9970 (2453)  RMB3.72 million 163 381
Company Limited of China H shares of
RMB1.00 each
RDRRRHERAT REAREME 3894501 N
BRER 3,7200007C
ARE1.007
ZHR
DX.com Holdings Limited The Cayman Islands 33,000,000 0.65% 24826 7128 (17,698) HKS1.56 million - 212
ordinary shares of
HKS0.01 each
DX.comERBR AT HeHe 33,000,000%% 156000077
BREE
00141
LEBR
PCCW Limited Hong Kong 1,824,000 0.025% 6476 6,293 91 HK$2.15 million 833 241
ordinary shares of
HKS0.25 each
ERRNERLH Fi 1,824,000 2150000557
BREE
02587
JERR
China Mobile Limited Hong Kong 73000 0.0004% 6,288 5858 (730)  RMB2.75 million 418 224
ordinary shares of
HKS0.1 each
HEBHERAA &k 73,0000 N
AR 27500007
0.1%T
ZEBR

China New Economy Fund Limited / Annual Report 2014
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B DT

Dividend
Proportion Netasset  received/ % of gross
Particular of of investee's Unrealized attributable  receivable assets
Place of issued capital Market ~ gain/(loss) to the during of the
Name of investee incorporation shares held owned Cost value  recognized Company theyear ~ Company
BH#3
BER RER REEE  BALT
FRERT  RERA g/ KRR B/ heE
FRENAER A RAFEE  ERUA ES e (B8) EERE  ERRE Aat
(Note 3) (Note 2)
(HH23) (hir2)
HKS000  HKS000  HKS000 HK$'000
TEL TER TEL TER
Wasion Group Holdings Limited The Cayman Islands 500,000 0.054% 2425 2,365 (60)  RMB1.41 million 360 090
ordinary shares of
HKS0.01 each
BBEEERERAT HEHS 500,000 AE®
BREE 14100007
0.01%TT
BRI
Listed debt securities — Singapore L HEKFEF — K
Interest
received/ % of gross
Unrealized Yield accrued assets
Place of Market gain/(loss) per annum during of the
Name of issuer incorporation Quantity Cost value recognized (%) Maturity date ~ theyear ~ Company
BRR
RER FEE  hADF
Wi/ EEHER B/ HEFME
BTAER AL 3 HE RA wiE (B8) (%) HHE BHAE Aotk
(Note 3)
(ME3)
HKS'000  HKS000  HKS'000 HKS'000
FET FEL TER TER
Chaowei Power Holdings Limited  The Cayman Islands 10,000,000 12,248 12,779 (37 7.25 24 September 2017 919 488
BRYNERERAR HEHE 2017598240
China WindPower Group Limited ~ Bermuda 9,800,000 10,396 12,404 1,549 6.375 4 April 2014 792 474
HERSEEERAR BHE 20145448

11
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Management Discussion and Analysis

B E WD

Notes:

)

The unrealized gain/(loss) represented the changes in fair value of the respective
investments during the Year.

The calculation of net assets attributable to the Company is based on the latest
published interim/annual reports of the respective investments at the end of each
reporting periods.

The unrealized gain/(loss) represented the changes in fair value of the respective
investments during the year ended 31 December 2013.

The number of shares represented the shares that would have been subdivided with
effected date on 17 February 2015.

A brief description of the business and financial information of the
investments is as follows:

(@)

Finsoft Corporation (“Finsoft") is principally engaged in the
provision of financial trading software solutions and provision of
referral business. The audited profit attributable to shareholders
of Finsoft for the year was approximately HK$11,319,000 and the
audited net assets attributable to the shareholders of Finsoft as at
31 December 2014 was approximately HKS60,267,000. The fair
value of the investment in Finsoft is based on quoted market bid
prices.

China Mobile Games and Cultural Investment Limited (‘CMGC") is
principally engaged in investment in mobile games, provision of IT
services, money lending business, medical diagnostic and health
check services, and securities and property investments business.
The unaudited loss attributable to shareholders of CMGC for the
six months ended 30 June 2014 was approximately
HKS$10,763,000 and the unaudited net assets attributable to
shareholders of CMGC as at 30 June 2014 was approximately
HKS243,840,000. The fair value of the investment in CMGC is
based on quoted market bid prices.

Town Health International Medical Group Limited (“Town Health")
is principally engaged in investment in healthcare business
including medical institutions operation and pharmaceutical
distribution in Hong Kong and China. The unaudited profit
attributable to shareholders of Town Health for the six months
ended 30 June 2014 was approximately HKS$45,157,000 and the
unaudited net assets attributable to shareholders of Town Health
as at 30 June 2014 was approximately HKS$1,196,375,000. The
fair value of the investment in Town Health is based on quoted
market bid prices.

Q)

RERWE(BR)EAFESRAREZATEE
D

ARREEZEEFEDRESRRERERED
RETTE 2 SO B P B3RS F WA E

REE Y (F5B) BB ZE20134F12A31 B IL4F
ERBREZ ATFEEZE -

Reth 8 B #8100 2015F 2 B 17 B4 2 IR fD -

BREHB ZEB LY BERNERAREZLT

(@)

EFEHA R ((EFEE]) EBHER
HEMIIUEFERAER A RIEGRE
NES - BEF SRR AFEEEEE
B M4 A411,319,00078 7T + M & B &k
IR 201412 A31 B Z B #& &
%8 BERE 4 460,267,000 7T © 81
BB 2 A FEDERTISRE -

TEFEXELREARARATHEF
BHIZREREFHER  RHEM
BERS - MERS - BRE2H KR
IR# R B2 R M ERE R - BE2014
FOHA30BIENEA - AEFERERE
IEREEZEIEL /107630008 7T
AR B F RN 2014566 A30 B 2 &
AR EZE EFEK R 243,840,000
T FEFERE 2 A FEDIERTS

HE -

FREEBREEEEARAA([FEE])E
BREBEREEBENTRREER (BIFE
BEHEEERERDHE) EBE2014F6
A30BANER @ EEREELRLE
¥ % K 4 /5 45,157,000 7T -+ 1 BEGE IR
HR2014F 6 A30H Z B AKLERE
BEREAAE1,196,3750008 7T © FEi2R
B2 N FETDERTISIRE -
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BBI Life Sciences Corporation (“BBI") is principally engaged in the
provision of DNA synthesis products and services in China and
North America. The audited profit attributable to shareholders of
BBI for the year was approximately RMB33,290,000 and the
audited net assets attributable to shareholders of BBI as at 31
December 2014 was approximately RMB494,111,000. The fair
value of the investment in BBI is based on quoted market bid
prices.

Jun Yang Solar Power Investments Limited (“Jun Yang") is
principally engaged in solar energy business with a current focus
on development, construction, operation and maintenance of
power station projects, money lending business and assets
investment. The unaudited profit attributable to shareholders of
Jun Yang for the six months ended 30 June 2014 was
approximately HK$120,956,000 and the unaudited net assets
attributable to shareholders of Jun Yang as at 30 June 2014 was
approximately HKS$1,165,267,000. The fair value of the investment
in Jun Yang is based on quoted market bid prices.

Nanjing Sinolife United Company Limited (“Nanjing Sinolife”) is
principally engaged in the sale of nutritional supplements and
health food products in China. The audited profit attributable to
shareholders of Nanjing Sinolife for the year ended 31 December
2014 was approximately RMB107,873,000 and the audited net
assets attributable to shareholders of Nanjing Sinolife as at 31
December 2014 was approximately RMB627,956,000. The fair
value of the investment in Nanjing Sinolife is based on quoted
market bid prices.

DX.com Holdings Limited ("DX.com”) is principally engaged in
e-commerce and provision of online sales platform, as well as
professional IT contract and maintenance services business. The
unaudited loss attributable to shareholders of DX.com for the six
months ended 31 December 2074 was approximately
HKS$29,115,000 and the unaudited net assets attributable to
shareholders of DX.com as at 31 December 2014 was
approximately HK$172,774,000. The fair value of the investment
in DX.com is based on quoted market bid prices.

Management Discussion and Analysis

B E S W AT

BBI A RIZ2AR AT ([BBI]) TEAEF
B J At 32 M #E 512 1 DNA G BK 22 i K AR
TEEERS o BBIRR R ANF E BN EIZ R T
4 & A R #33,290,0007T © i BBIPE &
MR2014F 12 A3 B2 EBGEEZEE
HEL A AR 494,111,000 7T - BBI#Z
B2 N FEDENRTISHRE -

EBARGEENREBRAB ([ERE]
TERERGEES BREERHF
T EE HEBRREFBUEE W
BEBREERE - HZE2014F6 830
BIEAER  ZHBRER(LREEZ R
F#7/4120,956,0008 ¢ + MEBRERN
2014 6 A30H Z BN R EREETF
BE477/1,165267,000/8 7T « BIBIRE
NFETIERTISRE -

ERAEBARMDERAR(ERFR
EDFEAFENREHELERRER
BRRERR BRTPERENEZE
2014F 12 A3 B It FEEMGE&EZ R
R#) A AE® 107,873,000 7T © M RT
AREN20145E12 A3 B 2 IR &=
ZEEFEN AR 627956,0007T °
ARPAERE Z AFEDERTISRE -

DX.com#ZE & B R A 7l ([DX.com]) ¥ &
REEFTEBRIEREREETES AU
MEEENREAORBECREER -
DX.com X ERAE = 2014412 A 31 H IE/<
18 B b R A& F 1% E 1849 529,115,000
BT+ M DX.com R F 20145 12 H 31
HEMARSEZEETFEDNA
172,774,000 7T - DX.com#&E & 7 A F
BEHERTBRE -
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Management Discussion and Analysis

B E WD

Hong Kong Education (Int'l) Investments Limited (“HKEI") is
principally engaged in the provision of private educational services
which consists of pre-school, secondary school, and tertiary
education, as well as language and skills training, and other
ancillary business including investment in securities, property
investments and money lending business. The unaudited loss
attributable to shareholders of HKEI for the six months ended 31
December 2014 was approximately HKS$S11,944,000 and the
unaudited net assets attributable to shareholders of HKEI as at 31
December 2014 was approximately HK$290,098,000. The fair
value of the investment in HKEI is based on quoted market bid
prices.

New Ray Medicine International Holding Limited ("New Ray") is
principally engaged in pharmaceutical distribution in China. The
audited profit attributable to shareholders of New Ray for the year
ended 31 December 2014 was approximately HK$29,681,000 and
the audited net assets attributable to shareholders of New Ray as
at 31 December 2014 was approximately HK$303,191,000. The
fair value of the investment in New Ray is based on quoted market
bid prices.

Hydra Capital SPC (“Hydra Capital”) is an exempted company
incorporated with limited liability and registered as a segregated
portfolio company under the laws of the Cayman Islands
established for the purpose of making investments on behalf of
its portfolio holders. Hydra Capital has engaged a manager to
make day-to-day decisions regarding the management of its
investments. The manager has appointed an investment manager
to manage and invest the assets of the investment portfolio on a
discretionary basis. The investment manager is a company
incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability principally
engaged in the provision of investment advisory, funds dealing,
introducing broker and asset management services. The
investment portfolio of Hydra Capital is currently focused on
making investments in internet-related and mobile-application-
related industries. The fair value of the investment in Hydra
Capital is stated as net asset value.
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The top three investments with realized gain and loss for the Year are
summarized as below:

Top three realized gain for the Year

REE=-AEBEHRNE

Name of investment

Management Discussion and Analysis

B E S W AT

RAFEHRBEEFRREREBZ=KERER
W

Realized gain

REER [ZF - $NE
HKS'000

FAT

China Culiangwang Beverages Holdings Ltd PEEE T RmiERBERA A 9,209
Finsoft Corporation b BA 8K (A ) 8,290
Dongjiang Environment Company Ltd RIRRBRDBRAR] 3,943

Top three realized loss for the Year

REE=-AERHREFE

Name of investment

Realized loss

REER EE 310
HKS'000

FET

DX.com Holdings Limited DX.comiZf& B R A A 18,342
AMCO United Holding Limited ERERERAF 8,490
Bonjour Holdings Limited FRERER AR 7,139

LIQUIDITY, FINANCIAL RESOURCES AND GEARING

The Company has obtained stock borrowing facilities since 2011. As at
31 December 2014, the Company did not have any stock borrowings (31
December 2013: Nil).

The Company has maintained a sufficient cash position which will allow
it to capture opportunities with promising returns in both listed and
private equities.

As at 31 December 2014, the gearing ratio, defined as total borrowings
divided by shareholders’ equities, was nil (31 December 2013: Nil). The
Company did not have any borrowing as at 31 December 2074 (31
December 2013: Nil).

FINAL DIVIDEND

The Directors do not recommend the payment of any final dividend for
the Year (2013: Nil).

RBEE MBERREAXAER
Ee=

AAEIE201T FREESERBRE - 72014
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Management Discussion and Analysis
BIEEaTwm AT

CHARGES ON COMPANY'S ASSET AND
CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

There were no other charges on the Company's assets or significant
contingent liabilities as of 31 December 2014 (31 December 2013: Nil).

CAPITAL STRUCTURE

On the Listing Date on 6 January 2011, the Company completed a share
placement and a total of 303,000,000 ordinary shares of HKS0.1 each
were placed at a price of HKS$1.03 per share for a total cash
consideration, excluding the related issue expenses, for approximately
HKS$312.1 million. On 20 September 2014, a total 151,500,000 ordinary
shares of HKS0.1 each (“Rights Shares") were issued at a price of
HKS0.28 per share for a total cash consideration, excluding the related
issue expenses, for approximately HK$42.4 million. On 23 November
2014, a total of 60,600,000 ordinary shares of HKS0.1 each were placed
at a price of HKS0.35 per share (the "Placing Shares") for a total cash
consideration, excluding the related issue expenses, for approximately
HKS21.2 million. The capital of the Company comprises only ordinary
shares.

RIGHTS ISSUE

During the Year, the Company has raised approximately HKS$41.1
million, net of expenses, by way of the rights issue of 151,500,000
Rights Shares to the qualifying shareholders at a subscription price of
HKS0.28 per Rights Share on the basis of one Rights Share for every
two ordinary shares. The Company used the net proceeds from the
rights issue for investment in information technology and healthcare
sectors in line with its ordinary course of business.

Details of the aforesaid Rights Issue can be referred to the
announcement dated 12 August 2014, 27 August 2014 and 23
September 2014 as well as the Listing document dated 29 August 2014.
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- Management Discussion and Analysis

PLACING OF NEW SHARES UNDER GENERAL
MANDATE

During the Year, the Company has raised approximately HK$20.3
million, net of expenses, by way of entering the placing agreement with
the placing agent, to place 60,600,000 Placing Shares to 6 placees who
and whose ultimate beneficial owners are independent third parties at a
price of HKS0.35 per Placing Share under the general mandate granted
to the Directors at the annual general meeting of the Company held on
28 May 2014. The Company used the net proceeds from the placing of
new shares for investment in information technology and life science
sectors in line with its ordinary course of business.

Details of the placing of new shares under general mandate can be
referred to the announcement dated 11 November 2014.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE LISTED
SHARES OF THE COMPANY

The Company did not purchase, redeem or sell any of the Company’s
listed shares during the Year.

CAPITAL EXPENDITURE AND COMMITMENT

Save as disclosed in note 24 to the financial statements, as at 31
December 2014, the Company made no capital expenditure or any other
commitments (2013: Nil).

MATERIAL ACQUISITION AND DISPOSAL

During the Year, the Company did not acquire or dispose of any
subsidiaries or associated companies (2013: Nil).
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Management Discussion and Analysis
BIEEaTwm AT

USE OF PROCEEDS

The Company has nineteen investments as of 31 December 2014,
comprising equities securities listed in Hong Kong and a private equity
fund. The largest one held by the Company is in the information
technology sector focusing in the Hong Kong and Mainland China
market.

The rest of the net proceeds gained will be applied by the Board and
China Everbright Securities (HK) Limited (the “Investment Manager”) in
making investments according to the investment objective, policies and
restrictions of the Company and the requirements of the Articles of
Association of the Company, the Listing Rules and the investment
management agreement. Any proceeds not deployed are placed in bank
deposits or invested in money market instruments or money market
funds.

EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICY

As at 31 December 2014, the Company had four full-time employees (31
December 2013: Nil). All of the Company’s employees were based in
Hong Kong.

The Company establishes its remuneration policy by making reference
to the prevailing market conditions and a performance-based reward
system. The policy is periodically reviewed. Apart from mandatory
provident fund, salaries increment and discretionary bonuses may be
awarded to employees according to the assessment of individual
performance.

The total remuneration cost incurred by the Company for the Year was
approximately HK$1,371,946 (31 December 2013: Nil).

FOREIGN CURRENCY FLUCTUATION

The Board believes that foreign exchange risks are minimal as the
Company mainly uses the Hong Kong or United States dollar to carry
out its business transactions.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee currently comprises of four Independent Non-
executive Directors, namely Mr. Lam Chun Ho (being the chairman with
professional qualifications in accountancy), Mr. Doyle Ainsworth Dally,
Mr. Faris Ibrahim Taha Ayoub and Mr. Huang Liangkuai.

The main duties of the Audit Committee are to assist the Board in
reviewing the financial information and reporting process, internal
control procedures and risk management system, audit plan and
relationship with external auditors, and arrangements to enable
employees of the Company to raise, in confidence, concerns about
possible improprieties in financial reporting, internal control or other
matters of the Company.

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

The Board hereby announces that the register of members of the
Company will be closed from Tuesday, 26 May 2015 to Thursday, 28
May 2015, both days inclusive, during which period no transfer of
shares will be registered. In order to qualify for the attendance of the
forthcoming annual general meeting (“AGM"), all transfers accompanied
by the relevant share certificates must be lodged with the Company’s
branch share registrar in Hong Kong, Computershare Hong Kong
Investor Services Limited, at Shop 1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell
Centre, 183 Queen's Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong for registration no
later than 4:30 p.m. on Friday, 22 May 2015.

Management Discussion and Analysis
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Profiles of Directors

i

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Craig Blaser Lindsay, aged 60, Chairman and Chief Executive
Officer of the Company. Mr. Lindsay is responsible for the management
and formulation of the Company's overall investment objective and
policies. Mr. Lindsay was appointed as Chairman and Chief Executive
Officer on 28 July 2010 and 31 July 2013 respectively and has been
Director of the Company since 1 February 2010.

Mr. Lindsay graduated from the Bloomfield College in USA with a
Bachelor of Arts degree in Accounting in 1976. He pursued further
studies at the Rutgers University Graduate School of Business in USA
and received his Master of Business Administration in Finance in 1979,
Mr. Lindsay has over 33 years' experience in the investment banking,
proprietary trading and fund management industries. His expertise lies
in areas of risk management, product accounting, financial reporting,
regulatory and compliance and operations. From July 1980 to May
1996, Mr. Lindsay worked for Goldman, Sachs and Co. in areas of
proprietary accounting and risk analysis, risk management, product
accounting and risk analysis, government control and mortgage backed
control, business analysis, risk management, product accounting and
equities accounting. From June 1996 to December 2003, Mr. Lindsay
served as an executive vice president and chief financial officer at Tokai
Asia Limited (now known as UFJ Investments Asia Limited). From 2004
to 2006, Mr. Lindsay worked at Sattva Investment Advisors Limited as
principal and chief financial officer. From 2007 to July 2014, Mr. Lindsay
was the director and responsible officer of China Shanghai Investment
Management Limited. From February 2008 to June 2014, Mr. Lindsay
was the director of each CSI China A-Share QFIl Fund Limited and CITIC
Securities Alpha Leaders Fund Limited; and the director and chief
operating officer of each of CITIC Securities International Fund
Management Limited. From August 2008 to June 2014, Mr. Lindsay
was the director and responsible officer of CITIC Securities International
Investment Management (HK) Limited.
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Currently, Mr. Lindsay is the director of China Alpha Il Fund Limited. Mr,
Lindsay is also appointed as director of The American Club Hong Kong
on 1 January 2011, Global Integrity Alpha Fund Limited on 18 April
2011, Next Horizon Company Limited on 22 July 2011, Hong Kong
Securities and Investment Institute on 7 December 2011 and the Hong
Kong Island Stingrays Swim Club Limited on 22 September 2012.
Commencing from 1 April 2013, he becomes a member of the HKTDC
Financial Services Advisory Committee and Steering Committee of the
Asian Financial Forum 2014 and 2015. Since July 2014, Mr. Lindsay
also becomes the senior partner of the China Alpha Fund Management
(HK) Limited. Mr. Lindsay is a licensed person for types 1, 4 and 9
regulated activities under the Securities and Futures Ordinance.

Mr. Gu Xu, aged 50, was appointed as executive Director of the
Company since 25 November 2010. Mr. Gu completed a bachelor's
degree majoring in Economics from Shanghai University of Finance and
Economics (/&8 A& KZ) in 1986. He further received a master's
degree majoring in Economics from the same university in 1989 and a
master's degree majoring in Business Administration awarded jointly by
Fudan University ({8 K2 and The University of Hong Kong in 2003.
Mr. Gu has accumulated 19 years' experience in asset management,
investment and financial management in both financial conglomerate
and private company. From October 2006 to May 2008, Mr. Gu was the
president and partner of L8R BRI EEE AR A7 (Create Capital
Co., Ltd.) and he was responsible for the management and investment
decision making of a fund in the PRC. Since July 2009, Mr. Gu has been
acting as the director of A RAKEESEEFRETAA (Henan
Agriculture Development Investment Fund Management Limited) and is
responsible for the management and supervision of a fund named ;i &
BEMBEZINEES (Henan Agriculture Development Investment
Fund). Since August 2010, Mr. Gu has been serving as the general
manager of FBZREX(VEIEKRERREFE LA (Shanghai Honghua
Cultural Venture Investment Company Limited) (the “Honghua Fund”), a
fund company targeting investment in culture industry in China. He is
also the general manager and director of the investment manager of the
Honghua Fund. Mr. Gu is also the chairman of the board of /8% R
BB AR AT (Shanghai Dongsheng Investment Management Co.,
Ltd.).

Profiles of Directors
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Profiles of Directors

i

Mr. Chan Cheong Yee, aged 51, was appointed as an executive Director
since 1 June 2013. Mr. Chan is one of the responsible officers of China
Everbright Securities (HK) Limited. Mr. Chan is currently a licensed
person to carry out type 1 (dealing in securities), type 2 (dealing in
futures contracts), type 3 (leveraged foreign exchange trading) and type
9 (asset management) regulated activities under the SFO. Mr. Chan
obtained a Bachelor of Science degree from the College of Business
Administration of The University of South Florida in the United States of
America. Mr. Chan is experienced in dealing in securities, fund
management, corporate management, corporate finance and managing
listed investment companies under Chapter 21 of the Listing Rules.

Since June 2003, Mr. Chan joined China Innovation Investment Limited
(1217 HK), an investment company listed on the Stock Exchange, as an
executive director. Mr. Chan was appointed as an independent non-
executive director of Bingo Group Holdings Limited (8220.HK), a
company listed on the Growth Enterprise Market of the Stock Exchange,
in August 2007, and was re-designated as an executive director of Bingo
Group Holdings Limited in April 2009. Mr. Chan was appointed as an
independent non-executive director of Agritrade Resources Limited
(1131.HK), a company listed on the Stock Exchange, in June 2010. Mr.
Chan was appointed as an executive director of China Investment and
Finance Group Limited (1226.HK), an investment company listed on the
Stock Exchange, in March 2011. Mr. Chan was appointed as an
executive director of China Investment Development Limited (204.HK),
an investment company listed on the Stock Exchange, in May 2012 and
was appointed as an executive director of Capital VC Limited (2324,
HK), an investment company listed on the Stock Exchange, in November
2012. Mr. Chan was appointed as an executive director of Alpha Returns
Group PLC, an investment company listed on AIM of London Stock
Exchange, in May 2013.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Lam Chun Ho, aged 32, was appointed as an independent non-
executive Director since 22 October 2014. He is the chairman of each of
the Audit Committee and Remuneration Committee as well as a
member of the Nomination Committee of the Company. Mr. Lam
graduated from Hong Kong Baptist University with a bachelor degree of
Business Administration in Accounting. Mr. Lam is a member of the
Hong Kong Institute of Certificate Public Accountants and he has over 8
years' experience in the field of auditing, financial reporting and financial
management. Mr. Lam is currently a manager of a local corporate
service company.

Since 24 October 2014, Mr. Lam has been appointed as an independent
non-executive director of China Renji Medical Group Ltd (648.HK), a
company listed in the Main Board of the Stock Exchange.
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Mr. Doyle Ainsworth Dally, aged 68, was appointed as an independent
non-executive Director of the Company since 26 July 2010. He is the
chairman of the Nomination Committee and a member of the Audit
Committee and Remuneration Committee of the Company. Mr. Dally
obtained a Bachelor of Science Degree from Atlantic Union College in
Massachusetts, USA in 1981 and a Master in Business Administration
from Nova Southeastern University in Florida, USA in 1992. He also
obtained the Trust and Estate Practitioner designation from the Society
of Trust and Estates Practitioners since October 1993. Mr. Dally has
been an independent non-executive director of CITIC Securities Alpha
Leaders Fund Limited since 4 March 2008. He is also the independent
non-executive director of China Alpha Il Fund Limited, Global Integrity
Alpha Fund Limited (formerly known as CSI RMB Fund Limited), BIAS
Global Portfolios SPC and CSI China A Share QFIl Fund Limited.

Mr. Dally was the former managing director of Wachovia Bank and
Trust Company (Cayman) Limited from 3 February 2005, a subsidiary of
Wachovia Corporation, all of which were acquired by Wells Fargo and
Company in October 2008. As a result of such acquisition and event
after consolidation between entities within Wachovia Corporation and
those within Wells Fargo and Company, Mr. Dally served as a managing
director of Wells Fargo Bank and Trust Co (Cayman) Limited, a
subsidiary of Wells Fargo and Company, until 12 November 2070.

Mr. Dally served in the trust division of Bank of Butterfield International
(Cayman) Ltd for 14 years. Before his retirement in 2004, he acted as
the senior manager and head of the trust and corporate services
division. Prior to that, he was manager of the trust administration
division of Butterfield Bank in Bermuda for 9 years.

Profiles of Directors
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Profiles of Directors
EEEF

Mr. Faris Ibrahim Taha Ayoub, aged 35, was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director since 1 February 2074. He is a
member of the Audit Committee, Nomination Committee and
Remuneration Committee of the Company. Mr. Ayoub holds a Master of
Arts (Hons) in Economics & Political Science from University of
Edinburgh. He has over 13 years' experience in financial advisory and
investments. Mr. Ayoub was an executive director in global principal
investments & trading division of JP Morgan, Hong Kong. Since March
2012, he became the Managing Director of Cassia Investments Limited,
which is a consumer focused investment firm specializing in lower
middle-market companies across Asia.

Mr. Huang Liangkuai, aged 72, was appointed as an independent non-
executive Director since 17 February 2015. He is a member of each of
the Audit Committee, Remuneration Committee and the Nomination
Committee of the Company. Mr. Huang graduated from the department
of economics of Xiamen University (Fujian, PRC) in August 1966,
majoring in statistics. Mr. Huang has been appointed as an external
supervisor of Shengjing Bank Co., Ltd. (Stock Code: 2066) since May
2014. He has been the chief representative of the Shenzhen Research
Institute of Xiamen University (EFIAZERYIFFFEFT ) and vice chairman
of Xiamen University Alumni General Association since August 1999.
From November 1984 to December 1998, he served as chief of the
general affairs division, chief of the assets division and vice chairman of
the alumni association at Xiamen University. He was the secretary to
the party committee of the school of economics at Xiamen University
from September 1979 to October 1984,

Faris Ibrahim Taha Ayoub %t % © 355% ' H
2014F2 A1 BREERERBUIENITES -
BAARRIBZEZES REZESRFMNE
BEKE - Ayoub L EFEHE T BREBFAK
BN BEL (RE) B - FRYHER R
BRHEEBE13FEE - Ayoub EEB RBEE
BERRKBEIKERRERZ HHBHATES - B
201243 R # ' 1§ Ak /& Cassia Investments
Limted EF AR - ZAAA—KEBERE
AE BEFEE MR NS ARG .

BERREE 7255 B2016F 217 HEE
ZERBUIENTES - BALARAIBZES
T FNZEGRREREEENE - EEER
196648 AEEREMAZ(FEER) &K
RIFGTE2E%¥ - BALEBE2014F5FRESR
EABRRBITRMBRA T (BRMH R - 2066)
SNEBESEE o 1% B 1999 FF 8 AHEIETEPIAZR
NHAEEEERRLEMIABRABSEESE
£ HMN1984FE11 AE1998FE 12 AEEE
FAEBABKER BEEERLMRACHES
£ o MR 197949 A= 19844 10 A BT
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The Directors have pleasure in presenting their report and audited
financial statements of the Company for the year ended 31 December
2014 (the "Year").

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITY

The Company is an exempted limited liability company, incorporated in
the Cayman Islands on 1 February 2010 for the purpose of acting as a
closed-ended investment company.

The Company is principally engaged in investing globally in both private
and publicly listed enterprises that have demonstrated the ability to
manufacture a product or deliver a service that is supported by the
economies of the mainland China, Hong Kong, Macau and Taiwan.

The shares of the Company are listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange with effect from 6 January 2011 (the “Listing Date"). The
Company had not commenced any operation or business before the
Listing Date.

FINANCIAL RESULTS

The results of the Company for the Year are set out in the financial
statements on pages 46 to 103.

DIVIDENDS

The board of Directors (the “Board”) does not recommend the payment
of any dividends for the Year (31 December 2013: Nil).

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and assets and liabilities of the Company for
the Year is set out on page 104.

RESERVES

Details of the movements in reserves during the Year are set out in the
statement of changes in equity to the financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements in share capital during the Year are set out in
note 20 to the financial statements.
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Report of the Directors
EEEWE

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE LISTED
SHARES OF THE COMPANY

The Company did not purchase, redeem or sell any of the Company’s
listed shares during the Year.

DIRECTORS

The Directors who held office during the Year and up to the date of this
report are:

Executive Directors

Craig Blaser Lindsay

(Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
Gu Xu
Chan Cheong Yee

Independent Non-executive Directors

Doyle Ainsworth Dally
Faris Ibrahim Taha Ayoub
Lam Chun Ho

Huang Liangkuai

Tai Man Hin, Tony

Arthur James Kay Stubbs
Siu Kam Chau

appointed on 1 February 2014)
appointed on 22 October 2014)
appointed on 17 February 2015)
resigned on 1 February 2014)
resigned on 1 July 2014)
resigned on 22 October 2014)

~ o~~~ o~

In order to comply with the requirements of the Code Provision A.4.2 of
the Code on Corporate Governance Practices in Appendix 14 to the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (the
“Listing Rules”), Mr. Craig Blaser Lindsay and Mr. Doyle Ainsworth Dally
shall retire at the AGM. According to Article 34.2 of the Company's
Articles of Association, Mr. Lam Chun Ho and Mr. Huang Liangkuai, who
were appointed by the Board on 22 October 2014 and 17 February 2015
respectively, shall hold office until the AGM and then shall be subject to
re-election at the AGM. Except Mr. Craig Blaser Lindsay and Mr. Doyle
Ainsworth Dally who had indicated not to seek for re-election, Mr. Lam
Chun Ho and Mr. Huang Liangkuai, being eligible, will offer themselves
for re-election at the AGM.

The biographical details of the Directors as at the date of this report are
set out in the section headed “Profiles of Directors” on pages 20 to 24 of
this annual report.

BE - HEIEEEAQT LHRAG

RAEE  ARRLEEE
AR LA

S

RAFEREEAREAY  EEESMOT :

BOHHERAR

BITES

Craig Blaser Lindsay 4t 4
(FREFTHAEEH)

B E

RERTLE

BYFHTES

Doyle Ainsworth Dally

Faris Ibrahim Taha Ayoub (201492 31 BEZ(T)
RS (R2014F10 A2 BEZAE)
BERR (R201552 A7 BEZH)
EyE (201452 A1 REHT)
Arthur James Kay Stubbs (78201447 A1 BEHT)
FR (2014510 A 22 BEHE)

RBUEIRPTES EAR BT LR AL Ksk
148z EERTERFAZFAIGXEAL2
{689 #8 5F * Craig Blaser Lindsay 5t 4 & Doyle
Ainsworth Dally e &£ B AR B F K e LR
F o IBEBARRREIRZMAIE 34.2 15408 - 5 5
2014410 A228 20156 2A17TAEE
EELZENMIRSF L RE R REENEES
BEERFBFRERIL HEARBRRBFXR
g BEEE(E o B Craig Blaser Lindsay fc4£ &
Doyle Ainsworth Dally 5t &£ & R T & FkE (T
O MIRFEAERERREEHEERAFEE
RIRRBF RS CEREF -

RAHE AR EZNBEEFBERANFRS
0FE24R [EFEE] —8 -

China New Economy Fund Limited / Annual Report 2014 26



EMOLUMENTS OF DIRECTORS

Details of the fee or emoluments of Directors during the Year are set out
in note 8 to the financial statements.

DIRECTORS' SERVICES CONTRACTS

None of the Directors who are proposed for re-election at the
forthcoming AGM of the Company has a service contract with the
Company which is not determinable by the Company within one year
without payment of compensation other than statutory compensation

(if any).

DIRECTORS' INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

Other than the “Investment Management Agreement” mentioned below,
no contracts of significance, to which the Company was a party and in
which any director of the Company had a material interest, whether
directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the Year or at any time
during the Year.

DIRECTORS' RIGHT TO ACQUIRE SHARES AND
DEBENTURES

At no time during the Year was the Company a party to any
arrangements to enable the Directors of the Company or their
respective spouse or children under 18 years of age to acquire benefits
by means of acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or
any other body corporate.

DIRECTORS' AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES' INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING
SHARES AND DEBENTURES

As at 31 December 2014, none of the Directors or chief executives of
the Company had any interest or short position in the shares, underlying
shares or debentures of the Company or any of its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and
Futures Ordinance (the "SFQ")) as recorded in the register required to be
kept by the Company pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, or as
otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to
the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed
Issuers as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules (the “Model
Code").
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Report of the Directors
EFERE

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS'/OTHER PERSON'S
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES
AND UNDERLYING SHARES

Shareholders’ Interests in Shares

As at 31 December 2014, the following person (other than the Directors
or chief executives of the Company) had interests or short positions in
the shares or underlying shares of the Company (the “Shares”) which
were recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company
pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO:

Long positions in the ordinary shares of HKSO0.10 each of the Company
(the “Shares”)

TERR HATRRG KA
RD 2 EmRKR

BRI AD 2 5

M2014F12A31H  WFAE(AQFES
S EZITHABRIN RARQ R 2 M) S iHE
Ben (TR ) R B BE RN AR RIREES
M EBE GBI 336 617 B 2 E et A 2 iz ok

NP
KA

RERFGKEEO10E T2 EBER(KG])
PR

Approximate %

Number of Number of  of Issued Share
Capacity in which Shares held Shares held Capital of
Name of Shareholders Shares are held (Direct interests) (Indirect interests) the Company
EAAF
FREROBE RO BB ERITREAZ
BRRER A RERRG 256 (E#fEzR) (EsEREz) BOBDHE
Athos Asia Event Driven Master Fund ~ Beneficial Owner 37,150,000 - 7.21
EnEEA (Note 1)
(F5E1)
Athos Capital Limited Investment Manager - 37,150,000 7.21
RELIE (Note 1)
(F&ET)
Moskey Matthew Love Interest in controlled corporation - 37,150,000 7.21
Rl NEIE £ (Note 1)
(Ft5ET)
Guocang Group Limited Interest in controlled corporation - 34,350,000 6.67
Bl EEER AR SR A (Note 2)
(PftzE2)
Notes: FfEE -

m These interests are 100% held by Athos Asia Event Driven Master Fund (the "AAED")
with Athos Capital Limited ("ACL") as investment manager. Moskey Matthew Love
("Moskey") holds 45% of the issued share capital of ACL. Accordingly, each of ACL
and Moskey is deemed to have interests in the 37,150,000 Shares of the Company
held by AAED pursuant to the Securities and Futures Ordinance.

(2) Guocang Group Limited (“GGL") owns the entire issued share capital of Brightpower
Assets Management Limited (“Brightpower”) which beneficially owns 34,350,000
Shares of the Company. Accordingly, GGL is deemed to have interests in the
34,350,000 Shares held by Brightpower pursuant to the Securities and Futures
Ordinance.

(1) #% % # 25 A Athos Asia Event Driven Master Fund
([AAED]) & & # & + i1 Athos Capital Limited
(TACLJ) BFEEREEIEA > Moskey Matthew Love
([Moskey DI BACLE TR ANEIAB%REIE o Ftt -
RIEEH R EED] - ACL K Moskey & B8 AR
AAED #5889 37,150,000 B AR B AD R A fE ek o

2 Bl 8 & B B R A 7] ([ Bl 48 & & ]) % A Brightpower
Assets Management Limited ([ Brightpower]) #) &
B % 17 B% A& fmBrightpowerf] B =X # A
34,350,000 R A AR - At - BIFFHFRBE
& 0l - BB & B 318 & K Brightpower £ 4 #)
34,350,000 AR {0 5 #E % o
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Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2014, the Company has
not been notified by any other persons who had interests or short
positions in the shares or underlying shares of the Company which are
required to be recorded in the register required to be kept by the
Company under Section 336 of the SFO.

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

During the Year, the Company had the following continuing connected
transactions, details of which were disclosed in compliance with the
requirements of Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

EXEMPT CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTION

Custodian Agreement

Pursuant to the Custodian Agreement dated 10 December 2010, the
Company appointed HSBC Institutional Trust Services (Asia) Limited
(the “Custodian”) as its custodian. The Custodian has agreed to provide
the Company with, among others, custodian services in respect of all
assets of the Company. The Custodian Agreement was effective on 10
December 2010 and will continue to be in force until terminated by
either the Company or the Custodian by giving the other party not less
than three months advance notice in writing.

Pursuant to the Custodian Agreement, the Company will pay the
Custodian a monthly fee of the higher of (a) up to 0.04% per annum of
the Company's net asset value, or (b) HKS7,500 per month for the six
month period from the Listing Date, and HK$15,000 for each month
thereafter.

During the Year, the custodian fee of HK$184,332 was paid by the
Company.

The Custodian is regarded as a connected person of the Company
under Rule 21.13 of the Listing Rules. The Directors anticipate that the
fees payable to the Custodian under the Custodian Agreement will not
exceed HKST million and the applicable percentage ratio calculated for
the purpose of Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules will be, on an annual
basis, less than 5%. Accordingly, the Custodian Agreement constitutes
a de minimis continuing connected transaction and is exempt from,
reporting, annual review, announcement and independent shareholders
approval requirements under Rule 14A.33(3) of the Listing Rules.
Accordingly, the custody service provided by the Custodian to the
Company under the Custodian Agreement constitutes an exempt
continuing connected transaction of the Company.
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Report of the Directors
EEEWE

Rental Agreement

During the Year, the Company had signed a 2-years rental agreement
commencing on 1 February 2014 (the "Rental Agreement”) with Profit
Sources Limited (the “Landlord”), an indirect subsidiary of Town Health
International Medical Group Limited which was a substantial
shareholders of the Company on or before 19 May 2014. Pursuant to
the Rental Agreement, the Company will pay the Landlord a monthly
rental payment (including management fee) of HKS17,260.

During the Year, the rental payment (including management fee) of
HKS$120,820 was paid by the Company and the Rental Agreement had
been terminated on 31 August 2014.

The Lardlord was regarded as a connected person of the Company
under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. The Directors anticipate that the
fees payable to the Landlord under the Rental Agreement will not
exceed HKS1 million and the applicable percentage ratio calculated for
the purpose of Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules will be, on an annual
basis, less than 5%. Accordingly, the Rental Agreement constitutes a de
minimis continuing connected transaction and is exempt from,
reporting, annual review, announcement and independent shareholders
approval requirements under Rule 14A.33(3) of the Listing Rules.
Accordingly, the Rental Agreement constitutes an exempt continuing
connected transaction of the Company.

NON-EXEMPT CONTINUING CONNECTED
TRANSACTION

Investment Management Agreement

Pursuant to the Investment Management Agreement dated 18
December 2013, the Company appointed the China Everbright Securities
(HK) Limited as its investment manager to provide the Company with
investment management services for an initial term from 1 January
2014 to 31 December 2016. The Investment Manager is entitled to
receive from the Company a management fee accruing monthly at the
annual amount of HK$960,000 and payable monthly in arrears from 1
January 2014 onwards.

During the Year, the management fee of HK$960,000 was paid by the
Company.

The Investment Manager is regarded as a connected person of the
Company under Rule 21.13 of the Listing Rules. Accordingly, the service
provided by the Investment Manager to the Company under the
Investment Management Agreement constituted a continuing
connected transaction of the Company.

HE W

RAFE AT HEREEREESEEGRA
AI(F2014F5 A 19 B ZAI AR AR E B/
RIWHEERBARBFMEERAR([ZEE])
R —HBE2014F2 A1 BT AMFE M
Epz((AEWRR]D - REAERZ - ~QF
BREELAHES(BEEEE)E A17,260
BT °

RAFE  ARFIEXHHS(BREEEER)
120,820 7t * MAEHHE R 20144 8 A 31
B4XE -

BEEMRAE14AE  EEHRABERRZ
BEAL - E2EY REBERZEMNEE
2 &R #8351,000,000 % 7T K gt £ T AR 81
BUUAEMEMTEZERADLLREFER
IR 5% o Bt - FAEMRBENX &ERE
SERERS THREEBETEMMBAE
14A33Q)G6BHANR - FEEN  AERE
UBRERAEZRE - At - BEBZRBKAD
AR RERERS -

FHREBERERS

REEE =R

RIEBEA2013F12 8 18ENREEE 94
KRB EZERBENKRES (BB BRAAME
BHEEETEA  AARARHKEESER
% ¥V EER2014F1 A1HE2016412
A31HIE - REEEABERAARAKDE
F0960,000 8 LEERE - W/AHB2014F1 A1
HRREAAESN -

ARRRRAFERZNEEE960,000/87T °

RIELETRAE2113F  REEBARRR
ARRBEEAL - Bt - REBEARER
BEERBRAARRRENRBEKRAR TN

China New Economy Fund Limited / Annual Report 2014 30



DIRECTORS’' OPINION ON CONTINUING CONNECTED
TRANSACTIONS

In the opinion of the Directors, including the independent non- executive
Directors of the Company, the terms of and the transactions
contemplated under the Investment Management Agreement and the
Custodian Agreement have been entered into after arm's length
negotiation, on normal commercial terms, and in the ordinary course of
business of the Company, and are fair and reasonable and in the
interest of the Company and the Shareholders as a whole.

The Company's auditor was engaged to report on the Company's
continuing connected transactions in accordance with Hong Kong
Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000 “Assurance Engagements
Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial Information” and
with reference to Practice Note 740 “Auditor’s Letter on Continuing
Connected Transactions under the Hong Kong Listing Rules” issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. The auditor
has issued an unqualified letter containing the findings and conclusions
in respect of the non-exempt continuing connected transactions
disclosed above by the Company in accordance with Rule 14A.38 of the
Listing Rules. A copy of the auditor's letter has been provided by the
Company to the Stock Exchange.

POTENTIAL CONFLICTS OF INTEREST

Currently the Investment Manager and their directors, officers and
employees provide management and advisory services to a number of
hedge funds, a mutual fund and managed discretionary accounts with
similar investment objectives to the Company.

From time to time conflicts of interest may arise between the interest of
the Company and those of other clients. In such situations, the
Investment Manager will have regard to its obligations to the Company
to act in the best interests of the Company, so far as is practicable
having regard also to its obligations to the other clients.

Mr. Chan Cheong Yee is a director of the Company and the Investment
Manager and are involved in the day-to-day operations of each of these
entities. This may give rise to conflicts of interest.

As the overall interests of the Company and Investment Manager are
aligned, the Directors are of the view that Mr. Chan will be able to act in
the best interests of the Company and its Shareholders. In addition, all
major decisions of each of these companies will be made by their
respective board of directors of these companies as a whole and not at
the sole discretion of Mr. Chan. In the case of the Company, this
includes the independent non-executive Directors and the executive
Director, Mr. Craig Blaser Lindsay and Mr. Gu Xu.

Mr. Chan will maintain confidentiality in respect of the information of
each of the funds managed by the Investment Manager. They are also
aware of their obligations under the Securities and Futures Commission
of Hong Kong's Internal Control Guidelines that they are required to
establish and ensure the integrity and security of all information relevant
to the business operations of the respective entities.
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Report of the Directors
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PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights in respect of the shares
of the Company under the articles of association of the Company
although there are no restrictions against such rights under the laws of
Cayman Islands.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Save as disclosed in the Corporate Governance Report on pages 33 to
43, the Company has complied with all applicable code provisions set
out in the Corporate Governance Code (the “CG Code") contained in
Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules during the Year and up to the date of
this report.

AUDITORS

Ernst & Young will retire at the forthcoming AGM of the Company and,
being eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment.

EVENT AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

Details of significant events occurring after 31 December 2014 are set
out in Note 26 to the finance statements.

HUMAN RESOURCES AND REMUNERATION
INFORMATION

As at 31 December 2014, the Company had four full-time employees,
three executive Directors and three independent non-executive
Directors. Details of the fees or emoluments of directors in respect of
their services rendered to the Company and staff cost during the Year
are set out in note 8 and note 9 respectively to the financial statements.
The Company does not have a share option scheme.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the Directors, the Company has maintained a
sufficient public float as required under the Listing Rules as at the date
of this report.

On behalf of the Board

Craig Blaser Lindsay
Chairman
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The board of directors (the “Board”) of the Company has committed to
maintaining a good corporate governance standards. The Board
believes that a good corporate governance standard will provide a
framework for the Company to formulate the business strategies and
policies, and manage the associated risks through effective internal
control procedures. It will also enhance the transparency and
accountability of the Company to safequard the interests of the
shareholders and creditors.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company has applied most of the principles set out in the
Corporate Governance Code (the “CG Code") contained in Appendix 14
to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (The “Stock Exchange”) (the “Listing Rules”). The
Board is of the view that throughouts the year ended 31 December
2014, the Company was in compliance with the code provisions as set
out in the CG Code, save and except for the deviation from code
provisions A.2.1 and A.4.1. Key corporate governance principles and
practices of the Company as well as the details of the deviations are
summarized below.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code of Securities Transactions
by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) as set out in Appendix
10 to the Listing Rules as its own code of conduct for dealing in
securities of the Company by the Directors. Having made specific
enquiry to all the Directors of the Company, all the Directors confirmed
that they had complied with the required standard of dealings as set out
in the Model Code throughout the year ended 31 December 2014.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

As at the date of this annual report, the Board comprises seven
members, three of which are executive Directors, namely Mr. Craig
Blaser Lindsay who is the Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of the
Company, Mr. Gu Xu and Mr. Chan Cheong Yee. The other four
members are independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Lam
Chun Ho, Mr. Doyle Ainsworth Dally, Mr. Faris Ibrahim Taha Ayoub and
Mr. Huang Liangkuai. There is no relationship (including financial,
business, family or other material/relevant relationship) among
members of the Board. The biographical details of the Directors are set
out in the section headed “Profiles of Directors” on pages 20 to 24 of
this annual report.
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The Board held 10 meetings during the year ended 31 December 2014.
The Board is responsible, inter alia, for establishing the investment
objective and policies of the Company, complying with the Company's
investment restrictions, for monitoring the Company's performance and
for the appointing, supervising, directing and, if necessary, removing any
of the Company's service providers, including the Investment Manager.

Current composition of the Board, including names of the Independent
Non- executive Directors, is disclosed in all corporate communications
to shareholders of the Company.

All Directors have full and timely access to all the information and
accounts of the Company. The Directors may seek independent
professional advice in appropriate circumstances, at the expense of the
Company. The Company will, upon request, provide separate
independent professional advice to the Directors to assist them to
discharge their duties to the Company.

RESPONSIBILITIES, ACCOUNTABILITIES AND
CONTRIBUTIONS OF THE BOARD

The Board is responsible for leadership and control of the Company and
oversees the Company’'s businesses, strategic decisions and
performance and is collectively responsible for promoting the success
of the Company by directing and supervising its affairs. Directors of the
Board take decisions objectively in the interests of the Company. All
directors, including independent non-executive Directors, have brought
a wide spectrum of valuable business experience, knowledge and
professionalism to the Board for its efficient and effective functioning.

The Board reserves for its decision all matters relating to policy matters,
strategies and budgets, internal control and risk management, material
transactions (in particular those that may involve conflict of interests),
financial information, appointment of directors and other significant
operational matters of the Company. Responsibilities relating to
implementing decisions of the Board, directing and co- ordinating the
daily operation and management of the Company are delegated to the
management.
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CONTINUOUS PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT OF
DIRECTORS

Directors keep abreast of responsibilities as a director of the Company
and of the conduct, business activities and development of the
Company.

Every newly appointed director will receive induction on the first
occasion of his/her appointment to ensure appropriate understanding
of the business and operations of the Company and full awareness of
director's responsibilities and obligations under the Listing Rules and
relevant statutory requirements.

Directors should participate in appropriate continuous professional
development to enhance and refresh their knowledge and skills to
ensure that their contribution to the Board remains informed and
relevant. All directors are encouraged to attend relevant training courses
at the Company's expenses.

A summary of training received by Directors during the year ended 31
December 2014 according to the records provided by the Directors is as
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Name of Directors

EEHS

Seminar and training on corporate
governance, regulatory development
and other relevant topics
BREEER BEERER

Hith BB EEM T R B

Executive Directors

Mr. Craig Blaser Lindsay
Mr. Gu Xu

Mr. Chan Cheong Yee

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. Doyle Ainsworth Dally
Mr. Faris Ibrahim Taha Ayoub
(appointed on 1 February 2014)
Mr. Lam Chun Ho
(appointed on 22 October 2014)
Mr. Huang Liangkuai
(appointed on 17 February 2015)
Mr. Tai Man Hin, Tony
(resigned on 1 February 2014)
Mr. Arthur James Kay Stubbs
(resigned on 1 July 2014)
Mr. Siu Kam Chau
(resigned on 22 October 2014)
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CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

Code provision A.2.1 stipulates that the roles of Chairman and Chief
Executive should be separate and should not be performed by the same
individual. Throughout the year ended 31 December 2014, Mr. Craig
Blaser Lindsay has been both the Chairman and Chief Executive Officer
of the Company. He provides leadership to the Board and is responsible
for the Company’s business development and daily management
generally. The Board believes that vesting the roles of both Chairman
and Chief Executive Officer in the same individual can provide the
Company with strong and consistent leadership and allows for effective
and efficient planning and implementation of business decisions and
strategies. The Board believes that the balance of power and authority
is adequately ensured by the operations of the Board which comprises
experienced and high-calibre individuals, with four of them being
Independent Non-executive Directors.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

During the year ended 31 December 2014, the Board has at all times
complied with the requirements of the Listing Rules relating to having a
minimum of three independent non-executive directors (representing at
least one-third of the Board) with one of them processing appropriate
professional qualifications or accounting or related financial
management expertise. The Company has received a written
confirmation of independence from each of the Independent Non-
executive Directors set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The
Company is of the view that all Independent Non-executive Directors are
independent.

Code provision A.4.1 requires that non-executive directors should be
appointed for a specific term and subject to re-election. Currently, Mr.
Doyle Ainsworth Dally, who is an Independent Non-executive Directors
of the Company, has no specific term of appointment but he is subject
to retirement by rotation at least once every three years. As such, even
though Mr. Dally is not appointed for a specific term, his term of office
is the period up to his retirement by rotation which is accordance with
code provision A.4.2 of the CG Code. The Company considers that
sufficient measures have been taken to serve the purpose of this code
provision.
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BOARD COMMITTEES

The Directors established the Audit Committee, Remuneration
Committee and Nomination Committee for overseeing particular
aspects of the Company's affairs. All Board committees of the Company
are established with defined written terms of reference. The terms of
reference of the Board committees are made available to the
shareholders on the websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange.

All members of each Board committee are Independent Non-executive
Directors and the list of the chairman and members of each Board
committee is set out in the section headed “Corporate Information” on
pages 2 to 4 of this annual report.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The main duties of the Audit Committee are to assist the Board in
reviewing the financial information and reporting process, internal
control procedures and risk management system, audit plan and
relationship with external auditors, and arrangements to enable
employees of the Company to raise, in confidence, concerns about
possible improprieties in financial reporting, internal control or other
matters of the Company.

The Audit Committee held two meetings to review interim and annual
financial results and reports in respect of the year ended 31 December
2014 and significant issues on the financial reporting and compliance
procedures, internal control and risk management systems, scope of
work and appointment of external auditors, and arrangements for
employees to raise concerns about possible improprieties.

The Audit Committee also met the external auditors twice without the
presence of the Executive Directors.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The primary function of the Remuneration Committee include (but
without limitation): (i) making recommendations to the Board on the
Company's policy and structure of all remuneration of the Directors and
senior management and on the establishment of a formal and
transparent procedure for developing policy on such remuneration; (ii)
determining the terms of the specific remuneration package of the
Directors and senior management; and (iii) reviewing and approving
performance-based remuneration by reference to corporate goals and
objectives resolved by the Directors from time to time.

Corporate Governance Report

PERERRSE

EEXZET

EXCRUBRZEE FMZEERRERZ
BE UEEARARFEHIHTERE - ARF
EESZESVEFAZMBENE -EF
ZEQZBEREC TERARE M FTHE
VIR -

FEFZBE U MAENBARBUIFNTE
T REFZEBEZEIRLANEBREINAF
WE2EAB [RAIER] —& o

BEREES

BENZEBEZIERBE AHHESSENMG
BRI BRI - NEEEREF MEAREE S
€ - BT M ESNBAZBED 2 BAR - DA NGE
ARBRERANRA IR - REREIR
HitEE 2 BHERBIRAZ 25

HZE2014F 12831 HILFE  BEXLEo8
TMRgE BRTHEREFUBEERRE
UREBMERREARER  RIEZRR
SERHE « TERERZIIINEZEMZE
REEH @ WEHHE B I BERN B -

BRZBENERERTESHENBR A
SIS AZ BB & B R ©

FMEES

FHEZE SRR EZRERE (BTR
) (VEERSREREMEHMIEN
ARBBRERBRAEZGRHSEER U
FhEETE Hr BB ) A B R AT =3B AE R IE
ANETF (NETEERSREEABNE
EHFMEAME  K (i) 2REETRIREH
TCEABRRREMBZL U ERRRETENR
B

37

FEFTEEIRER/R AR/ F3R 2014



Corporate Governance Report
TrERERRE

The Remuneration Committee held four meetings to review and make
recommendation to the Board on the remuneration policy and structure
of the Company, and the remuneration packages of the Executive
Directors and the newly appointed Independent Non-executive Directors;
and other related matters.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The primary duties of the Nomination Committee include reviewing the
structure, size and composition of the Board and making
recommendation to the Board on the proposed changes to the Board to
complement the Company’s corporate strategy, developing and
formulating relevant procedures for the nomination and appointment of
directors, making recommendations to the Board on the appointment or
re-appointment of Directors and succession planning for Directors, and
assessing the independence of Independent Non-executive Directors.

The Board has adopted a Board Diversity Policy on 27 March 2074. In
assessing the Board composition, the Nomination Committee would
take into account various aspects set out in the Board Diversity Policy.
The Nomination Committee shall also discuss and make
recommendation to the Board on measurable objectives for achieving
diversity on the Board. The Nomination Committee considered an
appropriate balance of diversity perspectives of the Board is
maintained.

The Nomination Committee held three meetings to review the structure,
size and composition of the Board and the independence of the
Independent Non-executive Directors and to consider the qualifications
of the retiring directors standing for election at the AGM and to consider
and recommend to the Board on the appointment of Mr. Lam Chun Ho
and Mr. Huang Liangkuai as Independent Non-executive Directors.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS

The Board is responsible for performing the corporate governance
functions as set out in the code provision D.3.1 of the CG Code. The
Board reviewed the Company's corporate governance policies and
practices, training and continuous professional development of
Directors and senior management, the Company’s policies and
practices on compliance with legal and regulatory requirements, the
compliance of the Model Code and the Company's compliance with the
CG Code and disclosure in this Corporate Governance Report.
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DIRECTORS' RE-ELECTION

Code provision A.4.2 of the CG Code states that every director, including
those appointed for a specific term, should be subject to retirement by
rotation at least once every three years.

The circular to shareholders of the Company with notice of the AGM
contains biographical details of all the Directors proposed to be re-
elected at the meeting to enable shareholders of the Company to make
an informed decision on re-election of Directors.

ATTENDANCE RECORD OF DIRECTORS AT
MEETINGS

The attendance record of individual members at the Board and other
Board Committee meetings and the general meetings of the Company
held during the year ended 31 December 2014 is set out in the table
below:
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Mr. Craig Blaser Lindsay Craig Blaser Lindsay %t 4 10/10 - - - N
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Notes:

HE

Mr. Siu Kam Chau resigned as an independent non-executive Director on 22 October
2014. The Board held seven Board Meetings, two Audit Committee Meetings, two
Remuneration Committee Meetings, two Nomination Committee Meetings and one
annual general meeting before his resignation.

Mr. Tai Man Hin Tony resigned as an independent non-executive Director on 1
February 2014. The Board held one Board Meeting, one Remuneration Committee
Meeting and one Nomination Committee Meeting before his resignation.

Mr. Arthur James Kay Stubbs resigned as an independent non-executive Director on
1 July 2074. The Board held three Board Meetings, one Audit Committee Meeting,
two Remuneration Committee Meetings, two Nomination Committee Meetings and
one annual general meeting before his resignation.

Mr. Faris Ibrahim Taha Ayoub was appointed as an independent non-executive
Director, a member of the Audit Committee, Remuneration Committee and
Nomination Committee of the Company on 1 February 2014. The Board held nine
Board Meetings, one Audit Committee Meeting, three Remuneration Committee
Meetings, two Nomination Committee Meetings and one annual general meeting
after his appointment.

Mr. Lam Chun Ho was appointed as an independent non-executive Director, the
chairman of the Audit Committee and Remuneration Committee, a member of
Nomination Committee of the Company on 22 October 2014. The Board held two
Board Meetings and one Remuneration Committee Meeting after his appointment.

Under code provision A.6.7 of the CG Code, the independent non-
executive directors and other non-executive directors should attend
general meetings and develop a balanced understanding of the views of
shareholders. One independent non-executive Director of the Company
was unable to attend the annual general meeting of the Company held
on 28 May 2014 due to various work commitments.

Apart from regular Board meetings, the Chairman also held meeting
with the independent non-executive Directors without the presence of
executive Directors during the year ended 31 December 2014.
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DIRECTORS' RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility to prepare financial
statements which gives a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the
Company in accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance for each financial year and to present the interim
results, annual financial statements, and related announcements to
shareholders.

The Directors are not aware of any material uncertainties relating to
events or conditions that may cast significant doubt upon the
Company's ability to continue as a going concern.

The statement of the independent auditors of the Company about their
reporting responsibilities on the financial statements is set out in the
Independent Auditors’ Report on pages 44 to 45.

INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board is responsible for the internal control of the Company and for
reviewing its effectiveness, including the adequacy of resources,
training programmes and budget of the Company’s accounting and
financial reporting function.

The internal control are reviewed and assessed on an on-going basis by
the Board, and will be further reviewed and assessed at least once each
year by the Board.

AUDITORS' REMUNERATION

The statement of the independent auditors of the Company about their
reporting responsibilities for the Company's financial statements for the
year ended 31 December 2014 is set out in the section headed
‘Independent Auditors' Report” in this annual report.

During the year ended 31 December 2014, the remuneration paid or
payable to the independent auditors, Ernst & Young, for services
rendered in respect of audit services and non-audit services are
HKS$193,000 and HKS$149,250, respectively.
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SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS

Procedures for shareholders to convening extraordinary general
meeting

There are no provisions allowing shareholders to propose new
resolutions at the general meetings under the Cayman Islands
Companies Law (2012 Revision). However, shareholders are requested
to follow Article 25.3 of the Articles of Association of the Company.
Pursuant to article 25.3 of the Articles of Association of the Company,
general meetings shall be convened on the written requisition of any
two or more members of the Company specifying the objects of the
meeting and signed by the requisitionists, provided that such
requisitionists hold as at the date of deposit of the requisition not less
than ten per cent in the Net Asset Value of the shares of the Company
which carries the right of voting at general meetings of the Company. If
the Board does not within 21 days from the date of deposit of the
requisition proceed duly to convene the meeting to be held within a
further 21 days, the requisitionist(s) themselves or any of them
representing more than one-half of the total voting rights of all of them,
may convene the general meeting in the same manner, as nearly as
possible, as that in which meetings may be convened by the Board
provided that any meeting so convened shall not be held after the
expiration of three months after the 21 days from the date of deposit of
the requisition, and all reasonable expenses incurred by the
requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of the Board shall be
reimbursed to them by the Company.

Procedures for shareholders to propose a person for election as a
director

The provisions for a shareholder to propose a person for election as a
director of the Company are laid down in Article 34.3 of the Company's
Articles of Association. No person other than a Director retiring at the
meeting shall, unless recommmended by the Board for election, be eligible
for election as a Director at any general meeting unless a notice in
writing of the intention to propose such person for election as a Director,
signed by a shareholder (other than the person to be proposed for
election as a Director) duly qualified to attend and vote at the meeting
for which such notice is given, and a notice in writing signed by such
person of his willingness to be elected shall have been lodged at the
registered office of the Company. The minimum length of the period
during which such notices are given shall be at least seven (7) days and
the period for lodgement of such notices shall commence on the day
after the dispatch of the notice of the general meeting appointed for
such election and end no later than seven (7) days prior to the date of
such general meeting.
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PUTTING FORWARD ENQUIRIES TO THE BOARD

Shareholders may send written enquiries or request to the Company, for
the attention of company secretary, by fax: (852) 2706-9544, or mail to
Room 707, 7/F., New World Tower 1, 16-18 Queen's Road Central,
Central, Hong Kong.

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Company endeavours to maintain an on-going dialogue with
shareholders and in particular, through annual general meetings or
other general meetings to communicate with the shareholders and
encourage their participation. The Chairman of the Board and Chairman
of the Audit Committee, Remuneration Committee and Nomination
Committee will make themselves available at the annual general
meeting to meet with the shareholders and answer their enquiries.

To promote effective communication, the Company maintains a website
at www.chinaneweconomyfund.com, where up-to-date information and
updates on the Company'’s financial information, corporate governance
practices and other information are available for public access.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

During the year ended 31 December 2014, the Company has not made
changes to its Memorandum and Articles of Association. An up-to-date
version of the Company’'s Memorandum and Articles of Association is
also available on the websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange.

Corporate Governance Report

TEERRE

MEEEFLENR

RERAFEBAT B EEERRE KB XSG
AABIGERARMEAWRAEAN) - BEZE(852)
27069544 HEFEHEHRREFKEF
16- 18Rt A RE1H 78707 £ -

HERRBE

ARBEBNRFEBRZ M2 FHEHHE - LH
EEBRRBFRGREMERAGERRE
BEBENS2E EFETRULEREER
g FHEESURREERZESIRELER
REBFAGAERRSEYMERENHAHF

AREBXRER ARAXEEUM
www.chinaneweconomyfund.com + Tl & /& 3
RATMBEER  CEERFHARAMER 2
BNEMEERN  HAREM -

BRXH

REZE2014F12 A3THIEFEER - ARQRL
A SRR A R ARNER RS - K
D P AR 2 KM S 4 Bl 2 SR b AR IR A A AR
NE) MR P ER] -

43

FEFTEERERBR AR/ F5 2014



Independent auditors’ report
TN A% BB

e
EY =

Building a better
working world

To the shareholders of China New Economy Fund Limited
(An exempted company incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited
liability)

We have audited the financial statements of China New Economy Fund
Limited (the “Company”) set out on pages 46 to 103, which comprise
the statement of financial position as at 31 December 2014, and the
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, the
statement of changes in equity and the statement of cash flows for the
year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and
other explanatory information.

DIRECTORS' RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with
International Financial Reporting Standards and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

AUDITORS' RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements
based on our audit. Our report is made solely to you, as a body, and for
no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept
liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on
Auditing. Those standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the financial statements are free from
material misstatement.
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An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about
the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. The
procedures selected depend on the auditors’ judgement, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk
assessments, the auditors consider internal control relevant to the
entity's preparation of financial statements that give a true and fair view
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the directors, as well
as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the financial statements give a true and fair view of the
financial positions of the Company as at 31 December 2014, and of the
Company's financial performance and cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards
and have been properly prepared in accordance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Ernst & Young

Certified Public Accountants
22/F CITIC Tower

1 Tim Mei Avenue

Central, Hong Kong

27 March 2015

Independent auditors’ report
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Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensiv

Bm M EMEE RS

Year ended 31 December 2014 #Z 2014 4 12 A 31 HILFE

31 December

31 December

2014 2013
20144 20134
12H31 8 12A31H
Notes HKS$ HKS
{h=a BT BIT
REVENUE WA 5 2,009,770 5,589,483
Net change in fair value of financial assets & A F{E:E BEZTE 2
at fair value through profit or loss TREEZ
AT EEEFE 6 173,538,301 17,883,193
Other operating expenses HEmEERS (12,838,386) (9,967,164)
PROFIT BEFORE TAX BRES AR R 7 162,709,685 13,505,512
Income tax expenses FriS i 12 (26,371,862) (2,364,725)
PROFIT AFTER TAX AND TOTAL EAREBEERFTEA
COMPREHENSIVE INCOME EEFERARBERIR
FOR THE YEAR ATTRIBUTABLE 2HEIKFEE
TO ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS
OF THE COMPANY 136,337,823 11,140,787
EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLETO A A TIEEREIEEFEA
ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE ELEERER
COMPANY 13
— Basic (restated for 2013) — EAR(R2013FE5) 0.36 0.03
— Diluted (restated for 2013) — #5E (R 2013FF7) 0.36 0.03
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Statement of Financial Position

IR

31 December 2014 2014 % 12 A31H

2014 2013
20144 20134
Notes HK$ HKS
M BT BT
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FRBEE
Deferred tax assets FIERIAE E 19 = 2,312,865
CURRENT ASSETS REBEE
Prepayments and other receivables TR SR8 & E A JE W sk 1B 14 15,539,372 659,426
Financial assets at fair value through EAVEEBERSE .
profit or loss SREE 15 443,068,858 56,797,281
Prepaid income tax TEA TS HL 6,361,121 -
Cash and cash equivalents ReERFSEE 16 12,199,764 201,849,766
Total current assets MEEERE 477,169,115 259,306,473
CURRENT LIABILITIES REBAE
Other payables E b e 7R 17 528,706 1,002,797
Amount due to a related company MRS AR FIE 18 80,000 350,000
Tax payable &5 1H = 5,938,469
Total current liabilities mEBERE 608,706 7,291,266
NET CURRENT ASSETS REBEEFE 476,560,409 252,015,207
TOTAL ASSETS LESS EELERRBERS
CURRENT LIABILITIES 476,560,409 254,328,072
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES FERBAE
Deferred tax liabilities BEFRIEEE 19 24,068,997 -
Net assets BEFE 452,491,412 254,328,072
EQUITY =
Issued capital B3 ITAR AN 20 51,510,000 30,300,000
Reserves s 400,981,412 224,028,072
Total equity EmiRE 452,491,412 254,328,072
NET ASSET VALUE PER SHARE BEREEZRE 21 0.88 0.84
Director Director
EE EE
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Statement of Changes In Equity

4F¥z§%
EREER

Year ended 31 December 2014 & Z 2014 4 12 A 31 HILEFE

(Accumulated
losses)/
Issued Share Retained
capital premium earnings Total
(RetER),/
BRTRA R EE REEF @t
Note HKS HKS HKS HKS
it aE BT BT BT BT
At 1 January 2013 R2013F1A1H 30,300,000 257,732,776 (44,845,4971) 243,187,285
Total comprehensive income  FRZ2EREAE
for the year - - 11,140,787 11,140,787
At 31 December 2013 and R2013F12A318
at 1 January 2014 K 2014F1A1H 30,300,000 257,732,776* (33,704,704)* 254,328,072
Shares issued during the year — FRE 17D 20 21,210,000 42,420,000 - 63,630,000
Share issue expenses BRI AY 20 - (1,804,483) - (1,804,483)
Total comprehensive income  FRZE R E(E
for the year = = 136,337,823 136,337,823
At 31 December 2014 R2014F12 831 H 51,510,000 298,348,293* 102,633,119* 452,491,412
* These reserve accounts comprise the reserves of HK$400,981,412 (2013:  * ZERBRE BEMBMLER N R 400,981,412

HKS$224,028,072) in the statement of financial position.

77T (2013 4F : 224,028,0727%87T) °
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Statement of Cash Flows

HE

MER

Year ended 31 December 2014 #Z 2014 4 12 A 31 HIEFE

2014 2013
2014 2013 %
Notes HKS$ HKS
BiisE BT BT
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES EETDE2RERE
Profit before tax B 75 A A 162,709,685 13,505,512
Adjustments for: BATHE#RE
Bank interest income RITH BUA 5 (109,958) (66,812)
Payments for purchase of financial assets and BERATEEBER 5']91%2
settlement of financial liabilities at fair value SHEEREBERATEE
through profit or loss BRIEZERBENR (422,357,981) (235,546,636)
Proceeds from sale of financial assets HEZRATEEBERE .
at fair value through profit or loss TREEMSHE 209,624,705 365,235,883
Net realised loss/(gain) on financial assets BATESRE ﬁJlJ@EZ%wﬂ‘i
at fair value through profit or loss é{F“fﬁfﬂﬁ/ W) #E 6 12,437,353 (17916,272)
Net unrealised (gain)/loss on financial assets RATEEBBEHIIRZ S/
at fair value through profit or loss BEREE (IR, BiE5E 6 (185,975,654) 33,079
(223,671,850 126,244,754
(Increase)/decrease in prepayments B RIE R A U FIE
and other receivables () /A (14,879,899) 57,498
(Decrease)/increase in other payables HihEAFIECRD), /Em (474,091) 257,468
Decrease in an amount due to arelated company ~ JERf—E@&E A B ER L (270,000) (64,986)
Cash (used in)/generated from operations HEEE (A /F5he (239,295,840) 125,494,734
Interest received EUH S 109,911 66,799
Income tax paid B ER (12,289,590) -
PRC withholding tax B TEHIR - (112,235)
Net cash flows (used in)/generated LEEE (A5
from operating activities Rens%E (251,475,519) 125,449,298
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES METHREZEERE
Proceeds from issue of shares BT PTSE0R 63,630,000 -
Share issue expenses BIIRGOEX (1,804,483) -
Net cash flows generated from financing BMETEMGZREREFE
activities 61,825,517 -
NET (DECREASE)/INCREASE IN CASH Iié&ﬁﬁ%fﬁ
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS D),/ ERE (189,650,002) 125,449,298
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year FPHeRReEE 201,849,766 76,400,468
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS ATEND OF YEAR S XEEREELEE 12,199,764 201,849,766
ANALYSIS OF BALANCES OF CASH RERBREZELBRIMN
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Cash at bank RITRE 16 4,815,793 6,548,161
Short-term time deposits with maturity FEEELR=EA
of less than three months 2R HTEEER 16 7,383,971 195,301,605
12,199,764 201,849,766
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Notes to Financial Statements

B H5 R M ot

31 December 2014 2014 % 12 A 31H

2.1

CORPORATION INFORMATION

China New Economy Fund Limited (the “Company”) was
incorporated in the Cayman Islands on 1 February 2010 under the
Companies Law of the Cayman Islands as an exempted company
with limited liability. The Company was established for the
purpose of acting as a closed-ended investment company.

The Company's registered office address is P.O. Box 309, Ugland
House, South Church Street, George Town, Grand Cayman KY1-
1104, Cayman Islands. The principal place of business of the
Company is at Room 707, 7/F., New World Tower 1, 1618
Queen's Road Central, Central, Hong Kong with effect from 1
September 2014.

The principal investment objective of the Company is to achieve
long-term capital appreciation through investing globally in both
private and public enterprises that have demonstrated the ability
to manufacture a product or deliver a service that is supported by
the economies of Mainland China, Hong Kong, Macau and Taiwan.

During the Year, the Company's investment activities are managed
by China Everbright Securities (HK) Limited (the “Investment
Manager”).

BASIS OF PREPARATION

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance
with International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRSs") issued
by the International Accounting Standards Board (IASB") and the
disclosure requirements of Appendix 16 of the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). They have been prepared under
the historical cost convention, except for the financial assets at
fair value through profit or loss which have been measured at fair
values. These financial statements are presented in Hong Kong
dollars ("HKS") except when otherwise indicated.

2.1
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2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES

The Company has adopted the following revised standards and
new interpretation for the first time for the current year's financial
statement.

Amendments to IFRS 10,  Investment entities
IFRS 12 and IAS 27

Amendments to IAS 32 Offsetting financial assets and
financial liabilities

Annual improvements
2010-2012 cycle

Annual improvements

2011-2013 cycle

Investment Entities (Amendments to IFRS 10, IFRS 12 and
IAS 27)

These amendments provide an exception to the consolidation
requirement for entities that meet the definition of an investment
entity under IFRS 10 Consolidated Financial Statements and must
be applied retrospectively, subject to certain transition relief. The
exception to consolidation requires investment entities to account
for subsidiaries at fair value through profit or loss. These
amendments have no impact on the Company, as it did not hold
interest in any subsidiary company.

Offsetting Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities —
Amendments to IAS 32

These amendments clarify the meaning of ‘currently has a legally
enforceable right to set-off' and the criteria for non-simultaneous
settlement mechanisms of clearing houses to qualify for
offsetting and is applied retrospectively. The amendments have
no other impact on the Company, since the Company does not
have any offsetting arrangements.

Notes to Financial Statements
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31 December 2014 2014 % 12 A31H
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Notes to Financial Statements

B H5 R M ot

31 December 2014 2014 % 12 A 31H

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND

22 SR BERRREER(H)

DISCLOSURES (Continued)
Annual Improvements 2010-2012 Cycle

In the 2010—2012 annual improvements cycle, the IASB issued
seven amendments to six standards, which included an
amendment to IFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement. The amendment
to IFRS 13 is effective immediately and, thus, for periods
beginning at 1 January 2014, and it clarifies in the Basis for
Conclusions that short-term receivables and payables with no
stated interest rates can be measured at invoice amounts when
the effect of discounting is immaterial. This amendment to IFRS
13 has no impact on the Company.

Annual Improvements 2011-2013 Cycle

In the 2011-2013 annual improvements cycle, the IASB issued
four amendments to four standards, which included an
amendment to IFRS 1 First-time Adoption of International Financial
Reporting Standards. The amendment to IFRS 1 is effective
immediately and, thus, for periods beginning at 1 January 2014,
and clarifies in the Basis for Conclusions that an entity may
choose to apply either a current standard or a new standard that
is not yet mandatory, but permits early application, provided either
standard is applied consistently throughout the periods presented
in the entity's first IFRS financial statements. This amendment to
IFRS 1 has no impact on the Company, since the Company is an
existing IFRS preparer.
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2.3 STANDARDS ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE

The applicable standards and interpretations that are issued, but
not yet effective, up to the date of issuance of the Company’s
financial statements are listed below. The Company intends to
adopt these standards, if applicable, when they become effective.

IFRS 9 Financial Instruments

In July 2014, the IASB issued the final version of IFRS 9 Financial
Instruments which reflects all phases of the financial instruments
project and replaces IAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and
Measurement and all previous versions of IFRS 9. The standard
introduces new requirements for classification and measurement,
impairment, and hedge accounting. IFRS 9 is effective for annual
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018, with early
application permitted. Retrospective application is required, but
comparative information is not compulsory. Early application of
previous versions of IFRS 9 (2009, 2010 and 2013) is permitted if
the date of initial application is before 1 February 2015. The
Company is currently assessing the impact of IFRS 9 and plans to
adopt the new standard on the required effective date.

IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers

IFRS 15 was issued in May 2014 and establishes a new five-step
model that will apply to revenue arising from contracts with
customers. Under IFRS 15, revenue is recognised at an amount
that reflects the consideration to which an entity expects to be
entitled in exchange for transferring goods or services to a
customer. The principles in IFRS 15 provide a more structured
approach to measuring and recognising revenue.

The new revenue standard is applicable to all entities and will
supersede all current revenue recognition requirements under
IFRS. Either a full or modified retrospective application is required
for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2017 with early
adoption permitted. The Company is currently assessing the
impact of IFRS 15 and plans to adopt the new standard on the
required effective date.

Notes to Financial Statements
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Notes to Financial Statements

B H5 R M ot

31 December 2014 2014 % 12 A 31H

2.3

2.4

STANDARDS ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE
(Continued)

In addition, the new Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622)
will affect the presentation and disclosure of certain information
in the annual financial statements for the year ending 31
December 2015. The Company is in the process of making an
assessment on the impact of this change.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

Fair value measurement

The Company measures its equity investments and debt
securities at fair value at the end of each reporting period. Fair
value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to
transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market
participants at the measurement date. The fair value
measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to
sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either in the
principal market for the asset or liability, or in the absence of a
principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset
or liability. The principal or the most advantageous market must
be accessible by the Company. The fair value of an asset or a
liability is measured using the assumptions that market
participants would use when pricing the asset or liability,
assuming that market participants act in their economic best
interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into
account a market participant's ability to generate economic
benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling
it to another market participant that would use the asset in its
highest and best use.

The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in
the circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to
measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable
inputs and minimising the use of unobservable inputs.

2.3

24

C 58 5 B 1e R 4 Y 2= 2 (4])
Boh - BB R RGN ($622%) 1%

BEHZ2015F12A3BIEFEZEF
PHEHRERETERZ2NNEFE - AR
RIEMEIEE ) 2 L EEH S -

TRETHRME

AVENE

RRABREREHRRAFEFEELE
mIREREBES - AFE/NRER
HE2EMSET I TBXSGMEEE
EfRRSEREEAXNZER - 2
FEFENENBRRNEEXRABNE
EMG AHEXTENE  AIREEX
BESAMNOMSETHEEENEER
BENRZMERE - EBXHZAFTH
ARAABAEEE —HEEXRE
MAFELDRATS2EEREEER
BEEERRKRANBR  RRMHSHE
FEUEFELEMNSTE

FERMEENAVFEFENZERENSEZ
HERBHEEMAEREREACH
HEETRIIERBEEARRERZK
e 2B E MELKENEAEES

ARAREREREENGEERMEA R
ERNEEBEAHAERTE  &KXLEM
A8 B8 ] B R A (B SR A R T B R
BAME

China New Economy Fund Limited / Annual Report 2014

54



2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Fair value measurement (Continued)

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or
disclosed in the financial statements are categorised within the
fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest
level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a
whole:

Level 1 — based on quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities

Level 2 — based on valuation techniques for which the
lowest level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement is observable, either directly
or indirectly

Level 3 — based on valuation techniques for which the
lowest level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement is unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial
statements on a recurring basis, the Company determines
whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy
by reassessing categorisation (based on the lowest level input
that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the
end of each reporting period.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 FESTBEME (H)

POLICIES (Continued)
Financial instruments @I A
(a) Classification (a 7#

AR AR R BIPR & 52 A 5 39 5%
EHTA: ERLAERESRE
ERTRABIERTIIELE-

The Company classifies its financial assets and financial
liabilities into the following categories in accordance with
IAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss () HAFEZBEZIIKSE
FEE

The category of financial assets at fair value through
the profit or loss is sub-divided into:

Financial assets held for trading:

Financial assets are classified as held for trading if
they are acquired for the purpose of selling and/or
repurchasing in the near term. This category includes
equity securities. These assets are acquired principally
for the purpose of generating a profit from short-term
fluctuation in price. The Company's policy is not to
apply hedge accounting.

Financial instruments designated as at fair value through
profit or loss upon initial recognition:

Financial assets classified in this category are those
that have been designated by management on initial
recognition. Management may only designate an
instrument at fair value through profit or loss upon
initial recognition when the following criteria are met,
and designation is determined on an instrument by
instrument basis:

The designation eliminates or significantly
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reduces the inconsistent treatment that would BIAREEFEEEDL
otherwise arise from measuring the assets or WREZEBAERHT
recognising gains or losses on them on a —BARTGE o

different basis.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

(a) Classification (Continued)

(0

(i)

(i)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
(Continued)

The assets are part of a group of financial
assets, which are managed and their
performance evaluated on a fair value basis, in
accordance with a documented risk
management or investment strategy.

The financial instrument contains one or more
embedded derivatives which significantly modify
the cash flows that otherwise would be required
by the contract.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial
assets with fixed or determinable payments that are
not quoted in an active market. The Company includes
in this category amounts relating to short-term
receivables.

Other financial liabilities

This category includes all financial liabilities, other
than those classified as financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss. The Company includes in this
category amounts relating to other payables and the
amount due to a related company.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

(b)

(c)

(d)

Recognition

The Company recognises a financial asset or a financial
liability when, and only when, it becomes a party to the
contractual provisions of the instrument.

Purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery
of assets within the time frame generally established by
regulation or convention in the market place (regular way
trades) are recognised on the trade date, i.e., the date that
the Company commits to purchase or sell the asset.

Initial measurement

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are
recorded in the statement of financial position at fair value.
All transaction costs for these instruments are recognised
directly in profit or loss.

Loans and receivables and financial liabilities (other than
those classified as financial liabilities at fair value through
profit or loss) are measured initially at their fair value plus
any directly attributable incremental costs of acquisition or
issue.

Subsequent measurement

After initial measurement, the Company measures financial
instruments which are classified as at fair value through
profit or loss, at fair value. Subsequent changes in the fair
value of those financial instruments are recorded in “Net
change in fair value of financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss”. Interest earned and dividend revenue
elements of these instruments are recorded separately in
‘Interest income” and “Dividend income” respectively.

Loans and receivables are carried at amortised cost using
the effective interest method less any allowance for
impairment. Gains and losses are recognised in profit or
loss when the loans and receivables are derecognised or
impaired, as well as through the amortisation process.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 FESHBERME(E)

POLICIES (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued) SRT A (&)

(d) Subsequent measurements (Continued) (d) E#:E2(E)
Financial liabilities, other than those classified as at fair SEREBEATESESABRIEZS
value through profit or loss, are measured at amortised cost meElIIneREaEIEATR
using the effective interest method. Gains and losses are MEE IR H ARG 2 - BN
recognised in profit or loss when the liabilities are NEER B ERIEERSFE BEEE
derecognised, as well as through the amortisation process. BIEEIER PR o
The effective interest method is a method of calculating the BERAMEEDNAESHEESS
amortised cost of a financial asset or a financial liability and BEMNEERAREEARRRS
of allocating the interest income or interest expense over the FMEBWASKFERZE T E - B
relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that MRz et T BE st F B N E
exactly discounts estimated future cash payments or B IRE S ARSI IR AT B 12
receipts through the expected life of the financial instrument ReTHiAZeRmEES R
or, when appropriate, a shorter period to the net carrying BEMNEREFEMNL X - tEBR
amount of the financial asset or financial liability. When AEE  ARRRETESRED
calculating the effective interest rate, the Company EZRINGMIAN—TAKIER
estimates cash flows considering all contractual terms of Mgt RAKEERE - stEEH
the financial instruments, but does not consider future credit EaRRERMNE 2 ZEBHHNE
losses. The calculation includes all fees paid or received NEFEN T —1 &R - X
between parties to the contract that are an integral part of SRANEMTB RESITE -

the effective interest rate, transaction costs and all other
premiums or discounts.

(e) Derecognition (e) HUIFFER
Afinancial asset is primarily derecognised where: ERMEEFZEETIBER THELL
R

The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have : WIZBEEMSReRE
expired; or BRI B A& ¢ 3
The Company has transferred its rights to receive cash : NN R E B Rk H U EUR B 5%
flows from the asset or has assumed an obligation to EERSREMNES B
pay the received cash flows in full without material RIR [823E | RHER R &
delay to a third party under a “pass-through” BERERBEATRAE=AF2
arrangement; and either (a) the Company has FEXNBEWERREREZE
transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of £ R () ARFIE #EZ
the asset, or (b) the Company has neither transferred BERNS )RR RER -
nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of (b) 7 A &) 3 f 8 5 o (R B %
the asset, but has transferred control of the asset. BEZ RS R K EHR -

WCEEZEE RS -
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

24 FESHBERME (&)

POLICIES (Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)
(e) Derecognition (Continued)

When the Company has transferred its rights to receive cash
flows from an asset (or has entered into a pass-through
arrangement), and has neither transferred nor retained
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset nor
transferred control of the asset, the asset is recognised to
the extent of the Company's continuing involvement in the
asset. In that case, the Company also recognises an
associated liability. The transferred asset and the associated
liability are measured on a basis that reflects the rights and
obligations that the Company has retained. The Company
derecognises a financial liability when the obligation under
the liability is discharged, cancelled or expires.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net
amount is reported in the statement of financial position if there is
a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised
amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, or to
realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

Impairment of financial assets

The Company assesses at each reporting date whether a financial
asset or a group of financial assets classified as loans and
receivables is impaired. An impairment exists if one or more
events that occurred after the initial recognition of the asset have
an impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial
assets or the group of financial assets that can be reliably
estimated.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

Evidence of impairment may include indications that a debtor, or a
group of debtors, is experiencing significant financial difficulty,
default or delinquency in interest or principal payments, the
probability that they will enter bankruptcy or other financial
reorganisation and, where observable data indicate that there is a
measurable decrease in the estimated future cash flows, such as
changes in arrears or economic conditions that correlate with
defaults. The amount of any impairment loss identified is
measured as the difference between the asset's carrying amount
and the present value of estimated future cash flows (excluding
future expected credit losses that have not yet been incurred)
discounted using the asset's original effective interest rate. The
carrying amount of the asset is reduced through the use of an
allowance account and the amount of the loss is recognised in
profit or loss.

Interest income and expense

Interest income and expense are recognised in profit or loss in the
statement of comprehensive income for all interest-bearing
financial instruments using the effective interest method.

Dividend income and expense

Dividend income is recognised on the date on which the
investments are quoted ex-dividend or, where no ex-dividend rate
is quoted, when the Company's right to receive the payment is
established. Dividend income is presented gross of any non-
recoverable withholding taxes, which are disclosed separately in
the statement of comprehensive income. Dividend expense
relating to equity securities sold short is recognised when the
shareholders' right to receive the payment is established.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 TESTHEREE (B)
POLICIES (Continued)
Related parties BER
A party is considered to be related to the Company if: ETAERT - EAALTEESERER
NRAE
(a) the party is a person or a close member of that person’s () BEFTAR—BALTHZALZHEE
family and that person FHYIREKE - M AT

() has control or joint control over the Company: () PEHIkHERESARAR :

(i) has significant influence over the Company; or iy HARFRBEEATE 3k

(i) is a member of the key management personnel of the (i) BEARFHIARAGRAEH
Company or a parent of the Company; FEBEBABNER —EK

8
or 3
(b) the party is an entity where any of the following conditions (b) BBEHZA/ER  HimEA MEAE
applies: (EEE

()  the entity and the Company are members of the same () Z“EBEARQGBR—SE
group; R BAE]

(i) one entity is an associate or joint venture of the other iy —HEEAS —EBHNHE
entity (or of a parent, subsidiary or fellow subsidiary of NAFAEER(IREZ—E
the other entity); BHSRR - WEBAF KA

B AT,

(i) the entity and the Company are joint ventures of the (iy ZEBRARNTNHAERA—%
same third party; =HMEERE

(iv) one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the vy, —AERAE=-FEBNA
other entity is an associate of the third entity; HhE ME—EBRZSE
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Related parties
(b)  (Continued)

(v)  the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the
benefit of employees of either the Company or an
entity related to the Company;

(vi) the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person
identified in (a); and

(vii) a person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence
over the entity or is a member of the key management
personnel of the entity (or of a parent of the entity).

Share capital

The Company's ordinary shares are classified as equity as the
Company has full discretion on repurchasing the shares and on
dividend distributions.

Issuance and acquisition of ordinary shares are accounted for as
equity transactions.

Upon issuance of shares, the consideration received is included in
equity.

Transaction costs incurred by the Company in issuing or acquiring
its own equity instruments are accounted for as a deduction from
equity to the extent that they are incremental costs directly
attributable to the equity transaction that otherwise would have
been avoided.

Own equity instruments which are acquired are deducted from
equity and accounted for at amounts equal to the consideration
paid, including any directly attributable incremental costs.

No gain or loss is recognised in the statement of comprehensive
income on the purchase, sale, issuance or cancellation of the
Company's own equity instruments.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

24 FESHBERME (&)

POLICIES (Continued)
Dividend distributions

Dividend distributions are at the discretion of the Company. A
dividend distribution to the Company's shareholders is accounted
for as a deduction from retained earnings. An interim dividend is
recognised directly as a liability in the period in which it is
irrevocably declared by the Board of Directors. A final dividend is
recognised as a liability in the period in which it is approved by the
annual general meeting of shareholders.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash
equivalents comprise cash on hand demand deposits and short-
term highly liquid investments that are readily convertible into
known amounts of cash, are subject to an insignificant risk of
changes in value, and have short maturity of generally within three
months when acquired.

For the purpose of the statement of financial position, cash and
cash equivalents comprise cash at bank, including term deposits,
which are not restricted as to use.

Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax
relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised
outside profit or loss, either in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities for the current and prior periods
are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or
paid to the taxation authorities, based on tax rates (and tax laws)
that have been enacted or substantially enacted by the end of the
reporting period, taking into consideration interpretations and
practices prevailing in the jurisdictions in which the Company
operates.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all
temporary differences at the end of the reporting period between
the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts
for financial reporting purposes.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Income tax (Continued)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary
differences, except:

when the deferred tax liability arises from the initial
recognition of goodwill or an asset or liability in a transaction
that is not a business combination and, at the time of the
transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable
profit or loss; and

in respect of taxable temporary differences associated with
investments in subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures,
when the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences
can be controlled and it is probable that the temporary
differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary
differences, the carryforward of unused tax credits and any
unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the
extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available
against which the deductible temporary differences, and the
carryforward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be
utilised, except:

when the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible
temporary differences arises from the initial recognition of
an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business
combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects
neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

in respect of deductible temporary differences associated
with investments in subsidiaries, associates and joint
ventures, deferred tax assets are only recognised to the
extent that it is probable that the temporary differences will
reverse in the foreseeable future and taxable profit will be
available against which the temporary differences can be
utilised.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 FTESHBERBE (&)

POLICIES (Continued)
Income tax (Continued)

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end
of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no
longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to
allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised.
Unrecognised deferred tax assets are reassessed at the end of
each reporting period and are recognised to the extent that it has
become probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to
allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates
that are expected to apply to the period when the asset is realised
or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that
have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the
reporting period.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a legally
enforceable right exists to set off current tax assets against
current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same
taxable entity and the same taxation authority.

The Company is exempt from all forms of taxation in the Cayman
Islands, including income, capital gains and withholding taxes.
However, in some jurisdictions, investment income and capital
gains are subject to withholding tax deducted at the source of the
income. Withholding tax is a generic term used for the amount of
withholding tax deducted at the source of the income. The
Company presents the withholding tax separately from the gross
investment income in profit or loss.

Functional and presentation currency

The Company's functional and presentation currency is the Hong
Kong dollar, which is the currency of the primary economic
environment in which it operates. The Company's performance is
evaluated and its liquidity is managed in Hong Kong dollars.
Therefore, the Hong Kong dollar is considered as the currency that
most faithfully represents the economic effects of the underlying
transactions, events and conditions.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)
Foreign currency translations

Foreign currency transactions during the Year are translated at
the rate of exchange prevailing on the date of the transaction.

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies
are retranslated at the functional currency rate of exchange ruling
at the reporting date. Differences arising on settlement or
translation of monetary items are recognised in profit or loss.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost
in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates as at
the dates of the initial transactions. Non-monetary items
measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated using
the exchange rates at the date when the fair value was measured.
The gain or loss arising from translation of a non-monetary item
measured at fair value is treated in line with the recognition of the
gain or loss on change in fair value of the item (i.e., translation
difference on the item whose fair value gain or loss is recognised
in other comprehensive income or profit or loss is also recognised
in other comprehensive income or profit or loss, respectively).

Foreign currency transactions gains and losses on financial
instruments classified as at fair value through profit or loss are
included in profit or loss in the statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income as part of the “Net change in fair
value of financial assets at fair value through profit or loss".
Foreign exchange differences on other financial instruments are
included in profit or loss in the statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income as “Foreign exchange gains/loss,
net".

Employee benefits
Pension scheme

The Company operates a defined contribution mandatory
provident fund retirement benefit scheme (the “MPF Scheme”)
under the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance for all of
its employees. Contributions are made based on a percentage of
the employees basic salaries and are charged to the statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income as they become
payable in accordance with the rules of the MPF Scheme. The
assets of the MPF Scheme are held separately from those of the
Company in an independently administered fund. The Company's
employer contributions vest fully with the employees when
contributed into the MPF Scheme.
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Notes to Financial Statements
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS,
ESTIMATES AND ASSUMPTIONS

The preparation of the Company's financial statements requires
management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions
that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets
and liabilities, and their accompanying disclosures, and the
disclosure of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these
assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that could
require a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of the
assets or liabilities affected in the future.

Judgements

In the process of applying the Company’s accounting policies,
management has made the following judgements, which have the
most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the financial
statements:

Going concern

The Company’s management has made an assessment of the
Company's ability to continue as a going concern and is satisfied
that the Company has the resources to continue in business for
the foreseeable future. Furthermore, management is not aware of
any material uncertainties that may cast significant doubt upon
the Company's ability to continue as a going concern. Therefore,
the financial statements continue to be prepared on the going
concern basis.

3.

EXREEHE - AT RER
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS,
ESTIMATES AND ASSUMPTIONS (Continued)

Estimates and assumptions

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources
of estimation uncertainty at the reporting date, that have a
significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are
described below. The Company based its assumptions and
estimates on parameters available when the financial statements
were prepared. However, existing circumstances and
assumptions about future developments may change due to
market changes or circumstances arising beyond the control of
the Company. These changes are reflected in the assumptions
when they occur.

Taxes

Uncertainties exist with respect to the interpretation of complex
tax regulations and changes in tax laws on foreign withholding
tax. Given the wide range of international investments, differences
arising between the actual investment income and the
assumptions made, or future changes to such assumptions, could
necessitate future adjustments to tax expense already recorded.
The Company establishes provisions, based on reasonable
estimates, for possible consequences of audits by the tax
authorities of the respective jurisdiction in which it invests. The
amounts of these provisions are based on various factors, such
as experience of previous tax audits and differing interpretations
of tax regulations by the taxable entity and the responsible tax
authority. Such differences of interpretation may arise on a wide
variety of issues depending on the conditions prevailing in the
respective domicile of investments.

3.
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4,

OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION

For management purposes, the Company is organized into
business units based on the categories of investment. During the
year ended 31 December 2014, the Company has two reportable
operating segments as follows:

MEEBNME  ARFREREHER
B EKEN - REZE2014%12 A31
BIEEE  AQRHEAUTRIER 2R

D ED -

Listed —  Investment in equity and debt securities FhESR - REREMBEISFRSMA
securities listed on relevant stock exchanges InERREBES

Unlisted —  Investment in a private equity fund M - RERLEREERES
securities #EH

During the year ended 31 December 2013, all of the Company's
investments are equity and debt securities listed in relevant stock
exchanges and the Company was organized into one main
operating segment.

Further details of the Company's investments are included in Note
6 and note 15.

The following is an analysis of the Company's results by operating
segments:

REZE2013F12A31BIEFE - AR
RIFMTEREENIBABELSR S ETZ
EENERES BRRRESE—E

TEBEEDE -

BRARBRENE - THIBENME
6 KPfFET5

AT RIREEDHBHARRREEMEZ
DA

Listed Unlisted

securities securities Total

tmEH F EHES et

HK$ HK$ HK$

For the year ended HZE2014%F12A31H
31 December 2014 IEFE

Segment results D EPEELE 175,416,026 22,087 175,438,113

Bank interest income RITHBUTA 109,958
Unallocated expenses RABLF (12,838,386)

Profit before tax B B B F) 162,709,685
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4. OPER_ATlNG SEGMENT INFORMATION 4. REFIER(E])
(Continued)
Listed Unlisted
securities securities Total
EWES FELEmHESH HEt
HKS HKS HKS
BT BT BT
For the year ended #HZE20134F12A31H
31 December 2013 IEFE

Segment results DEbEELE 23,405,864 - 23,405,864
Bank interest income RITHFEUA 66,812
Unallocated expenses ROBLFX (9.967,164)
Profit before tax R Wt A& A 13,505,512
For the years ended 31 December 2014 and 2013, segment HZE2014F K2013F12A31HIEFE -
results represented the net gain on fair value of listed equity and DEMEBEOERIERA TV EEBIBRT
debt securities classified as financial assets at fair value through FremEEs EMEEREBESFD
profit or loss and the corresponding interest income as well as FEKEFEREENERANNRED
dividend income earned by each segment without the allocation ERE L R BWA - Tet RITHAZ R
of administrative expenses and interest income from bank RITFERFEWAUREEEEAER
deposits as well as investment manager's fees. DB e
As management considers the Company's nature of business as ARNEEERAARNRNERLEE A%
investment trading, there was no information regarding major BEH MMEBEARAMETEE
customers as determined by the Company and no segment EFPHAER  BRIEZRo Bk -

revenue is presented.
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4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION

4. KEsHER(HE)

(Continued)
The following is an analysis of the Company's assets and liabilities UTAEEEESBERABEEREE
by operating segments: Fr{E2 5 #T -
Listed Unlisted
securities securities Total
Bk FEmHESF ot
HK$ HK$ HK$
At 31 December 2014 R2014F12A31 H
Assets: BE
Financial assets at fair value BAFEBEBERYIER
through profit or loss L EREE 405,546,771 37,522,087 443,068,858
Unallocated assets AOWEE 34,100,257
Total assets BERE 477,169,115
Liabilities: afE:
Unallocated liabilities AoLEaE 24,677,703
Total liabilities BERE 24,677,703
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4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION 4. REDHER (M)
(Continued)
Listed Unlisted
securities securities Total
EMESH FLEMES st
HKS HKS HKS
BIT BT BT
At 31 December 2013 7201312431 H
Assets: BE
Financial assets at fair value BATFEBRERYE
through profit or loss ZEREE 56,797,281 - 56,797,281
Unallocated assets RO EE 204,822,057
Total assets BEHE 261,619,338
Liabilities: afE:
Unallocated liabilities KoL BfE 7,291,266
Total liabilities RERGES 7,291,266
For the purpose of monitoring segment performance and MEEDERIR LN D HBHEELEE IR
allocating resources between segments, all assets are allocated T BRIERIE K H s EUCERIE - TR
to reportable segments other than prepayments and other kR e RSB FIEEE
receivables, prepaid income tax and cash and cash equivalent. DEEEAZ2HH P
5. REVENUE 5. WA
An analysis of revenue is as follows: WADTEAT -
2014 2013
20145 20134
HKS$ HKS
BT BIT
Dividend income from listed equity securities I #2575 A% B U A 1,214,784 3,531,876
Interest income from listed debt securities FEBESFF BB 685,028 1,990,795
Bank interest income RITHBUTA 109,958 66,812
2,009,770 5,589,483
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6. NET CHANGE IN FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL 6. RAFEZEBERIERz2SH

ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT OR EEZ AT EEEHFE
LOSS
Listed Unlisted

securities securities Total

Eh@% FEmES it

HK$ HKS$ HK$

BT BT BT

For the year ended 31 December #ZE2014F 12 31 H

2014 FEFE
Net realized loss on financial BRATEERERIEERZ
assets at fair value through SRAEEZRERFE
profit or loss (12,437,353) = (12,437,353)

Net unrealized gain on financial 4% N (E35% 8183658 >

assets at fair value through SRVBEREIE
profit or loss WaFE 185,953,567 22,087 185,975,654

Total realized and unrealized HABRAZEEE

gain included in profit or loss REBUWEEE 173,516,214 22,087 173,538,301
Listed Unlisted

securities securities Total

EWES JELEMES HET

HKS HKS HKS

BT BT BT

For the year ended 31 December #Z 2013412 A31H

2013 IEFE
Net realized gain on financial BRATEFERERIERZ
assets at fair value through TRAEFRNFFE
profit or loss 17,916,272 - 17,916,272

Net unrealized loss on financial ¥~ FEEBER TR
assets at fair value through Zéﬁgﬁﬁﬂigﬁ
profit or loss iR FE (33,079) - (33,079)

Total realized and unrealized SFABEAZER R
gain included in profit or loss RER W BE 17,883,193 - 17,883,193
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7. PROFIT BEFORE TAX 7. BREEANGEF
The Company'’s profit before tax is arrived at after charging/ QA2 BRBATE RIS (BT A) KA
(crediting): THIBRER :
2014 2013
2014 % 20134
HKS$ HKS
BT BT
Investment management fee (note 11) REEEE () 960,000 4,200,000
Foreign exchange loss/(gain), net SNEESHE,(Was) - JF58 359,401 (178,527)
Auditors’ remuneration ZE RN & 342,250 304,500
Staff cost (excluding director's remuneration) BT A(TEIEEEHE) 1,371,946 -
Minimum operating lease payments BRAME 2 HRKE
in respect of properties HER 295,723 -
Consultancy fee EEfE 1,892,000 -
Legal and professional fees FEREEALEA 1,254,916 1,038,884
8. DIRECTORS’' REMUNERATION 8. EEME
Directors’ remuneration for the Year, disclosed pursuant to the RIEETRAEEBERTEN (5 622F)
Listing Rules and section 78 of the Schedule 11 to the Hong Kong BTSIEMIERT WS RATRA FEHE
Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622) , with reference to section 161 of 161 ETUBRBRC AFEEEMS AT -
the predecessor Ordinance, is as follows:
2014 2013
20144 20134
HKS$ HKS
BT BT
Fees e 1,489,814 594,750
Other emoluments H 4 - _
1,489,814 594,750
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8. DIRECTORS' REMUNERATION (Continued) 8.

(@) Independent non-executive directors

(@)

The fees paid to independent non-executive Directors during

ExME (8

BYFHTES

AERIN TFEIIFRTEENR

the Year were as follows: EA/IINE
2014 2013
2014 20134
HKS$ HKS
AT BT
Mr. Siu Kam Chau B
(resigned on 22 October 2014) (FA20144 10 A 22 BEHE) 94,669 117,000
Professor Xu Yangsheng RBEHE
(resigned on 1 October 2013) (72013410 A1 B&IMT) - 117,000
Mr. Doyle Ainsworth Dally Doyle Ainsworth Dally 5 4 117,000 117,000
Mr. Tai Man Hin Tony B E
(resigned on 1 February 2014) (FA2014F 2 A1 BEHE) 9,750 29,250
Mr. Arthur James Kay Stubbs Arthur James Kay Stubbs %t 4
(resigned on 1 July 2014) (FA20144F7 A1 BEHE) 58,500 29,250
Mr. Faris Ibrahim Taha Ayoub Faris Ibrahim Taha Ayoub %t 4
(appointed on 1 February 2014) (R2014F2 A1 BEZE) 107,250 -
Mr. Lam Chun Ho MRS ST
(appointed on 22 October 2014) (FA2014F 10 A22 BEZT) 22,645 -
409,814 409,500

(b) Executive directors

(b)

The fees paid to executive Directors during the Year were as

BITES

AEEXNTRITESNHEE I

follows: ™
2014 2013
20145 20134
HKS HKS
BT BT
Mr. Craig Blaser Lindsay Craig Blaser Lindsay 7t 4 360,000 -
Mr. Gu Xu BB E 360,000 117,000
Mr. Chan Cheong Yee BRE&ELE 360,000 68,250
1,080,000 185,250
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9. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES

Notes to Financial Statements
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9. EERAMFEX

2014 2013

20145 20134

HKS$ HKS

BT BT

Salaries, wages and allowances e TERER 1,330,871 -
Retirement benefit expenses RIKENF

— Defined contribution plan — EFEMKETE 41,075 -

1,371,946 -

The Company operates a defined contribution scheme in Hong
Kong which complies with the requirements under the Mandatory
Provident Fund ("“MPF") Schemes Ordinance. Contributions to the
MPF scheme follow the MPF Schemes Ordinance.

Under the MPF scheme, each of the Company (the employer) and
its Hong Kong employees makes monthly contributions to the
scheme at 5% of the employees’ relevant income, as defined in the
MPF Schemes Ordinance. Both the Company and its employees'’
monthly contributions are subject to a cap of HKS$1,250 prior to 1
June 2014 and HKS$1,500 thereafter and contributions beyond
these amounts are voluntary. The contributions are fully and
immediately vested upon payment.

At 31 December 2014, there were no forfeited contributions (2013:
Nil).

ARERERSEAES ([BESR])F
EIGROINARTE - EBBRB ERMENG
gl - mE S EIHFRB BB EIE
fFIEATT -

RIERESHE ARF (B RER
BRESEASARREERBURACESR
R o ta & 5 BIRMH)) 6% M sz &t 814 H
e AAR R EERTAHRKRN 20144
68 1H A A12507% 7T & H 1& LA 1,500
ATRLER BhEBSENHZIAE
BREME - HRESESEEENES -

A20145F12 8318 i EME T E 8 UK
(20134 : #)
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10. FIVE HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS

The five highest paid individuals during the year included 3
directors (2013: Nil), details of whose remuneration are set out in
note 8 above. Details of the remuneration of the remaining 2
(2013: Nil) highest paid individuals during the year who are neither

10.

AEEREHMAL

FALERSFMALEREIRES
(20134 : &) WENFMFBHR L
XFEE8 c FAVWIARBEERTETT
BABHE#$2% (2013F - )&= H

a director nor chief executive of the Company are as follows: B A TE S BNEEIB T -
2014 2013
20145 20134
HK$ HKS
BT BIT
Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind e EEREWER 953,750 -

Retirement benefit expenses RIKENFA

— Defined contribution plan — EFEMHHKETE 25,950 -
979,700 -

The number of non-director and non-chief executive highest paid
individuals whose remuneration fall within the following band is
as follows:

FEZRFTBETBRABESHFMAL
M FENE A T REM AT

Number of individuals

11. FEES

A
2014 2013
2014 20134
Nil to HK$1,000,000 =% 1,000,000% 7T 2 -
11. A
Administration fee THEEBEE

HSBC Trustee (Cayman) Limited (the "Administrator”) is entitled to
receive an administration fee which is calculated at each valuation
day at the following rates:

First HKS800 million of net asset value 0.140% per annum
Next HKS1,200 million of net asset value  0.125% per annum
On the remainder of net asset value 0.110% per annum

The administration fee is subject to a monthly minimum fee of
HKS$73,000 and is payable monthly in arrears.

HSBC Trustee (Cayman) Limited ([ 17 X
EBADBRUDNESEERKRTINE

KHENTHRERS -

BEEFEMNEESERT  BF0.7140%
EEFENTEI2EET SF0.125%
BEEFENRTHD B%0.110%

THEEBAXESARKEMT73000%
TRIRRBREA AR
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11. FEES (Continued)

Administration fee (Continued)

The administration fee for the year was HK$876,000 (2013:
HKS876,000). As at 31 December 2014, an administration fee of
HKS$146,000 (2013: HKS73,000) was payable to the Administrator.

Valuation fee

The Administrator is also entitled to a fee of HKS8,000 per
additional valuation. This is payable on a monthly basis for a
calculation of the Company’s net asset value on an ad-hoc basis.
No valuation fee was charged for the year (2013: Nil). As at 31
December 2014, no valuation fee was payable to the
Administrator (2013: Nil).

Custodian fee

HSBC Institutional Trust Services (Asia) Limited (the “Custodian”)
is entitled to receive a custodian fee which is calculated at each
valuation day at the following rates:

First HKS800 million of net asset value 0.040% per annum

Next HKS1,200 million of net asset value  0.035% per annum

On the remainder of net asset value 0.030% per annum

The custodian fee is subject to a monthly minimum fee of
HKS$15,000 and is payable monthly in arrears.

The custodian fee for the Year was HK$184,332 (2013:
HK$180,000). As at 31 December 2014, a custodian fee of
HK$32,399 (2013: HK$15,000) was payable to the Custodian.

Management fee

Effective from 1 January 2014 and throughout the Year, the
Investment Manager is entitled to a management fee accruing
monthly at the annual amount of HK$960,000 and payable in
arrears from 1 January 2014 to 31 December 2016.

The management fee for the Year was HK$960,000 (2013:
HKS$4,200,000). As at 31 December 2014, a management fee of
HK$80,000 (2013: HKS$350,000) was payable to the Investment
Manager.

11.
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REEBAGRKDNEARKERSES
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& 1 80,000/ st (20134 : 350,000
BIL) B TIREERA o
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12. TAXATION 12. &\

HE20145 % 201312 A31BILEE
FrERiM EEHMN A

The major component of income tax charge for the years ended
31 December 2014 and 2013 are:

2014 2013
20144 20134
HKS$ HKS
BT BT

Current tax: BNEATR IR
Hong Kong profits tax BEREH - 5,938,469
Less: adjustment over provision for 2013/14 & : 2013/14 FEEHFHE (10,000) -
PRC withholding tax AR FEFNRL - 112,235
(10,000) 6,050,074
Deferred tax (note 19) EEFLTE (F5E19) 26,381,862 (3,685,979)
Tax charge for the year FEMEBERY 26,371,862 2364725

A reconciliation of the tax expense applicable to profit before tax
using the statutory rate to the tax expense at the effective tax rate

B RAE R 2 BB A A BT E 2 3%
ERXRIRERREAE 2 HAERASEH

is as follows: BRaNT -
2014 2013
20145 20134
HKS HKS
BT BT
Profit before tax TR A S A 162,709,685 13,505,512
Tax at the statutory tax rate of 16.5% RETEME16.5% st HHTHIR 26,847,098 2,228,409
Income not subject to tax I 2 WA (715,206) (656,314)
Investment loss not deductible for tax TR RIS B E 18 - (3,240,737)
Expenses not deductible for tax TR AR 502,998 3,021,132
PRC withholding tax RN = 112,235
Overprovision for 2013/14 2013/14 FBFERAE (10,000) -
Tax losses not recognised RERTIBEE (253,028) -

Tax charge at the effective rate of REBHE16.2%
16.2% (2013: 17.5%) (20134F : 17.5%)5tE R

BIE 2 26,371,862 2,364,725
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12. TAXATION (Continued)

Cayman Islands

Under the current Cayman Islands law, there is no income tax,
corporation tax, capital gains tax or any other kinds of tax on
profits or gains or tax in the nature of estate duty or inheritance
tax currently in effect.

The Company received an undertaking from the Governor-in-
Council of the Cayman Islands to the effect that, for a period of
twenty years from the date of the undertaking, no law that is
hereafter enacted in the Cayman Islands imposing any tax on
income will be levied on the Company.

Hong Kong

Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate of 16.5%
(2013: 16.5%) on the estimated assessable profits arising in Hong
Kong during the year. No provision for Hong Kong profits tax had
been made as the Company did not generate any assessable
profits in Hong Kong during the year ended 31 December 2014
(2013: HK$5,938,469).

PRC

PRC withholding tax expense was incurred on dividend income
received by the Company.

Notes to Financial Statements
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12. BiE (])

RS

B 2R EAEN B E M EEMAR
B8 RAH - BAREVSREREM
TR 2R A0 4 M) X M 2 7 SIS AR T ©

ARARERFHSHEREERITRE
ARG mAGEER B HE -+ F 5
B FASEHS 2 RBEMOERBEEANR
IMEMBIREERE NS H AR R -

BE

NEF  NEBEAZGTERFERN
2B R 16.5% (20134F : 16.5%) B # &
BRI - BNARATEEE 2014412
A3 AL FEWEREBEETMRER
PR MY EREBFNEGRIEDBE
(20134 : 59384698 TT) °

PE

TEREARFAXERRRRAEED
YA S A T E A -
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13. EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO 13. XRAEBREERAARESE
ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE B2 F
COMPANY
During the Year, the Company has raised approximately HKS41.1 RAFEE  KRBIEGMKRE B D
million, net of expenses, by way of rights issue of 151,500,000 BE-IRERRD 2EE  URBEES
rights shares to the qualifying shareholders at a subscription price R R A% 15 0.28 78 T A1 & & A& IR SR AR A%
of HKS0.28 per rights share on the basis of one rights share for % 77151,500,000 f% i M 17 - EE 4
every two ordinary shares. The rights issue price represent a 41,100,000 7T (kR ) - HRER
discount of 28% to the prevailing fair value at the date of rights PR BB R A T EITE28% o
issue. The effect of bonus element resulting from the rights issue FREEMLARE DT ED T ATRER
has been included in the calculation of basic and diluted earnings NEERFMNGE - MUATHENER
per share and the prior period basic and diluted earnings per share ERREERFEIELFHE - URMHA
are adjusted in order to provide a comparable basis. B EE o
The calculation of the basic and diluted earnings per share BREANESERENCEINE BEZRD
amount is based on the Company's profit for the year attributable B A ARFEE AR BEF 136,337,823
to ordinary equity holders of HK$136,337,823 (2013: 7S 70 (20134F 11,140,787 70) R AR F
HKS$11,140,787) and the weighted average number of ordinary BB BT EMARIN#EFHE374,302,502
shares in issue during the year of 374,302,502 (2013: 334,443,396 A% (2013 4F : 334,443,396 % (E 51| ) T i@
(restated) ordinary shares), as adjusted to reflect the rights issue ) stEB Y WEEHARNURBAE
and placement shares issued during the year. The Company had FEEBTHRMEER D - XARIRZ
no potentially dilutive ordinary shares in issue during those years. P 67 8 A0 4 B B 1 T8 A B X m AR AR
e
14. PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 14. FERAREREMERKIE
2014 2013
20144 20134
HKS$ HKS
BT BIT
Prepayments and other receivables TE A 3038 & E Ath FE W IR 539,325 222,709
Interest income receivable from debt securities JEURER7E % F 2 U A — 436,704
Bank interest receivable FEWLERTTHIE 47 13
Fund subscription pending for allotment BRHEEEZESRE 15,000,000 -
15,539,372 659,426

RS HIR - bt FE U SR IR BR & 28 A %
HIRIE

As at the end of the reporting period, none of the above
receivables is either past due or impaired.
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15. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH

Notes to Financial Statements
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15. BAFEEBRRIIRZEH

PROFIT OR LOSS BE
2014 2013
20144 20134
HKS$ HKS
BT BT
Listed equity securities: EERES
— Hong Kong — &5 405,546,771 31,613,970
Listed debt securities: LETEBE?
— Singapore — FThni - 25,183,311
Investment in a private equity fund WENLERIEES
— The Cayman Islands - HEeHs 37,522,087 -
443,068,858 56,797,281

The fair values of the listed equity securities and listed debt
securities are determined based on the quoted market bid prices
available on the relevant stock exchanges at the end of the
reporting period.

The Company invested in a private equity fund which is not
quoted in an active market. Transactions in such investments do
not occur on a regular basis. The Company uses its net asset
value to determine its fair value as the Company determined that
this is the fair price in which shareholders subscribe and redeem
from the fund.

Net unrealised gain on financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss of HK$185,975,654 (2013: net unrealised loss of
HKS$33,079) has been recognised in profit or loss.

tiEmEsRk EMEBESFNQFE
TIRBHREES RSN EEHRAE
HH IS REETE °

ARARERNLEREEENESHER
BRBHMIST L ERE - ZFREDN
RBHWITERET - AARHEAEEE
FEEEEAFE  ARARERHUL
TRRABBELEESER 2 A FHER -

BATEBRBRIECZSHEEZ R
SR BT F(E185975,6548 (20134 :
RERBEFME3B079BT)ENER
Was kPR AR SEE -
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16.

17.

18.

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 16. BEREELEE
2014 2013
2014 20134
HKS HKS
BT BT
Cash at banks RITIRE 4,815,793 6,548,161
Short-term time deposits RETFHER 7,383,971 195,301,605
12,199,764 201,849,766

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on daily bank
deposit rates. Short-term time deposits are made for varying
periods between one day to three months depending on the
immediate cash requirements of the Company, and earn interest
at the respective short-term time deposit rates. The cash at bank
and short-term time deposits are placed with Hongkong and
Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited.

At the end of the Year, cash at bank of the Company denominated
in Renminbi (RMB) amounted to HKS$4,815,774 (2013:
HKS$6,548,161). The RMB is not fully convertible into other
currencies, however under the Mainland China’s Foreign Exchange
Control Regulation and Administration of Settlement, Sale and
Payment of Foreign Exchange Regulations, the Company is
permitted to exchange RMB to the currencies through banks
authorised to conduct foreign exchange business.

OTHER PAYABLES

As at 31 December 2014 and 2013, the other payables are non-
interest-bearing and have an average term of less than three
months.

AMOUNT DUE TO A RELATED COMPANY

As at 31 December 2014 and 2013, the amount due to a related
company represents a management fee payable to the
Investment Manager. The amount is non-interest-bearing and has
a repayment term of less than one month.

17.

18.

RITAE HERBARTHERMERZZF
BRI RBRERANE - RATHFRZHR
NF-—BEZ@AAF  BFAREY
ReZmR2BNEME @ i 8 EBRF
PIZ R R B SN R EREUH B - RITHR
ERENEHREREFATELBES
RITER AR -

RAEFEER  KAGIUARE(ARE)
SHEZRTTES A48157747% £ (2013
F:65481618IL) c ARBTBER
HAHEMER - KW REPEAH
ZLOINEE ARG ) R(LETE - B REE
EEBTE) ARREASBERELE
INEEBEZBITHEARELBAEME
vltg o

H B R

R2014F KX 2013F 12 4318 - EfbfE
NI E R FHFRLR=EA -

P+ — R RAE A B 7R

MR2014F K% 2013412 A318 © [ERf—
FRAERARNEEEMNREERAZE
BBH - ZFETHF B KRR D
B—EA -
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19. DEFERRED TAX

The movements in deferred tax liabilities and assets during the

years are as follows:

Deferred tax liabilities

Notes to Financial Statements
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19. EERIIE

FRARERABBEREEZSHMNT

FEEREAE

Unrealised gain on financial assets at
fair value through profit or loss

BRAFEEBREBERIEZ
SMEEZAREBEKRR
HKS
BIT
At 1 January 2013 M2013F1 A1 H 1,865,752
Deferred tax charged to profit FARBERNKRZ
or loss during the year (note 12) IRIERRIE (FEE12) (1,865752)
Gross deferred tax liabilities at M2013F 12 A31HZ
31 December 2013 IRERITR B B4R -
Deferred tax charged to profit or loss FARFTABR ZELERIE
during the year (note 12) (FFE12) (24,068,997)
Gross deferred tax liabilities at MR2014%F 1283182
31 December 2014 ELHBAEEE (24,068,997)
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19. DEFERRED TAX (Continued)

Deferred tax assets

19. IEFERITE ()

EEBREE

Losses available
for offsetting
against future

Unrealised loss
on financial
assets at fair
value through

taxable profits profit or loss Total
BROFER
AHIRHRRE  BRIEZERE
RPBRFZER EEAEBEER @gt
HKS HKS HKS
BT BT BT
At 1 January 2013 M2013F1A1H 492,638 - 492,638
Deferred tax (debited)/credited to FRRBRENR),FTAZ
profit or loss during the year EERIE (H3E12)
(note 12) (492,638) 2,312,865 1820227
Gross deferred tax assets at M2013F12A3182
31 December 2013 EERBEERRE - 2,312,865 2,312,865
Deferred tax debited to profit or FARBREHBRZ
loss during the year (note 12) EERE (MEE12) - (2,312,865) (2,312,865)

Gross deferred tax assets at
31 December 2014

201412 A318 2
FERERTEEERRE
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19. DEFERRED TAX (Continued) 19. EEBE (&)
Deferred tax assets (Continued) EEHIEEE (F)
For presentation purposes, certain deferred tax assets and BEVMs  BETELEHMEZEERAE
liabilities have been offset in the statement of financial position. BRI AR KL - LTAXRR®
The following is an analysis of the deferred tax balances of the BT ER R 2 IR R TR SR RE D AT

Company for financial reporting purposes:

2014 2013
20144 20134
HKS$ HKS
BT BIT
Net deferred tax (liabilities)/assets recognised R FSARIL R AFER 2
in the statement of financial position BRI (BE) EEFE (24,068,997) 2,312,865
There are no income tax consequences attaching to the payment AR A [ B SRR A B B 30 4 B 75 P 1S 750
of dividends by the Company to its shareholders. ‘R -
.
20. ISSUED CAPITAL 20. SRITRA
Number of shares Nominal amount
ROBE HE
HKS
BT
Authorised: EE
Ordinary shares as at 31 December 2013 M2013F12A31HZ
(776,000,000 shares of HKS0.1 each) 3% (776,000,000 %
BREEC BT M 776,000,000 77,600,000
Ordinary shares as at 31 December 2014 M2014F12H31HZ
(776,000,000 shares of HK$0.1 each) @A (776,000,000 A%
BREE BT ZRG) 776,000,000 77,600,000
Issued and fully paid EETRER
515,100,000 (2013: 303,000,000) 515,100,000 % &%
ordinary shares of HKS$0.1 each [ENEAR s <)
(20134 : 303,000,000 %) 515,100,000 51,510,000
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20. ISSUED CAPITAL (Continued)

20.

A summary of movements in the Company’s share capital is as

ERITRA ()

ARBRAESHDLAT

follows:
Number of Share
shares in Issued premium
issue capital account Total
BT
R EE BRITRA BHRER @st
HKS HKS HKS
BT BT BT
At 1 January 2013, R2013F1THTE »
31 December 2013 and 2013F 128318
1 January 2014 20141 A1H 303,000,000 30,300,000 257,732,776 288,032,776
Rights issue AR (a) 151,500,000 15,150,000 27,270,000 42,420,000
Placing shares IR E /5 (b) 60,600,000 6,060,000 15,150,000 21,210,000
515,100,000 51,510,000 300,152,776 351,662,776
Share issue expenses BT X - - (1804483)  (1,804483)
At 31 December 2014 720144128318 515,100,000 51,510,000 298,348,293 349,858,293
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20. ISSUED CAPITAL (Continued)

(@)

On 20 September 2014, a total of 151,500,000 ordinary
shares of HKS0.1 each (the "Rights Shares") were issued at
a price of HKS0.28 per share for a total cash consideration,
before the related issue expenses, of HK$42,420,000. The
issued and fully paid capital of the Company was increased
to HKS45,450,000 and resulted in a share premium of
HKS27,270,000, before deducting the rights issues expenses
of HKS$1,060,000. The net proceeds of the Rights Shares,
after deduction of the issue costs of the Company, were
subsequently applied by the Investment Manager in making
investments according to the investment objectives, policies
and restrictions of the Company and the requirements of the
Articles.

On 23 November 2014, a total of 60,600,000 ordinary shares
of HKS0.1 each were placed at a price of HKS0.35 per share
(the "Placing Shares") for a total cash consideration, before
the related issue expense, of HK$21,210,000.00. The issued
and fully paid capital of the Company was increased to
HKS$51,510,000 and resulted in a share premium of
HKS$15,150,000, before deducting the share placement
expense of HK$744,000. The net proceeds of the Placing,
after deduction of the costs of the Company, were
subsequently applied by the Investment Manager in making
investments according to the investment objectives, policies
and restrictions of the Company and the requirements of its
Memorandum and Articles of Association.

Notes to Financial Statements
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20. S RITRAE(A)

(@)

MR2014F9A20H » KA RIESE
f0288 L 2 B BT A H
151,500,000 Bz FRXEE 0.1 BT .2
Tk ([HRRG ) - BIRSRE
(TeEREHEERTHX) A
42,420,00087C - KRB EEITR
% R I K38 = 45,450,000 58 7T 0 0
B £ A% B9 2 1,060,000 7% T AT & 2
%1735 (8 27,270,000/ 7T » & &
B ABRMEL BB REAQF
HEBE  BEREERH - ARAR
AIAMERMA - EHHRARIRE
B R EEERHREME
RIEFE R A QR BEITR
) e

2014511 A23 8 » ARFIIEE
PRO3BE L 2 BIREEE & &
60,600,000 i & EE0.1 7B L 2
Tk ((EERD])  BReRE
(T"BEEHEBEETHX) A
21,210,000.007 7T » A A & 3
17 M8 R B A 42 = 51,510,000
T HBR AR5 BE & B S 744,000 8
JC Bl %8 BU% 19 & {8 15,150,000 78
TC o WEEBABNMELIRERR
BARARIMEERR  BERER
Bl ARAKRARMBMERAMANE
RYER 2 HEHBERIEEMER
EFE (KEHBARRKA) °
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21.

22.

NET ASSET VALUE PER SHARE

The calculation of net asset value per share is based on the net
assets of the Company as at 31 December 2014 of
HKS$452,491,412 (2013: HKS$254,328,072) and on 515,100,000
ordinary shares being in issue as at 31 December 2074 (2013:
303,000,000 ordinary share).

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

In addition to the related party transactions detailed elsewhere in
these financial statements, the Company had the following
transactions with related parties during the year:

Investment Manager — China Everbright Securities (HK) Limited

The Investment Manager is responsible to manage, supervise and
direct the investment, disposition and re-investment of the assets
of the Company, on a discretionary basis, but subject to the
investment objective and restrictions of the Company. The
Investment Manager is entitled to receive management and
performance fees for its respective services in terms of the
agreement dated 18 December 2013. Details of the fees to which
the Investment Manager is entitled are provided in note 17 to the
financial statements.

The directors consider the key management personnel of the
Company comprise its Board of Directors, whose remuneration is
shown in note 8 to the financial statements.

21.

22.

BREERE

EREEFETEARAN2014F12
HA318 W & E )F 145249141275 7T
(20134 : 254,328,072 7T ) A 2014
%12 A31 HE #717515,100,000 % E i@
A% (2013 4F : 303,000,000 A% & 3@ I% ) =t

At

BRELRZ
W T 7L S8 S TR AL B B A0 B
EFR B ARTRENRMEY

TR

KEEEA — FEXRES (FE)BR
/i‘ﬂ

&%ﬁ%fi/ﬁ%%%ﬁé%lﬁ 4
CEBRIERARABBEEMNKRE Jﬁ
E&E?‘xﬁ WASANFHRE BIZ
FEREGR - REEEAREESA
201312 A18 AW ek &3k - BREnt
HERMNSEAERSKMERS KK
HE - FREKEEREAFHEKRNER
HBERRTIERENE -

EERR/ARREREEABEREEE
FEXE  REZME MM EHRERMES
F7R e
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23. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 23. REREsEeMIA
The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial EHBem I ARRE AR REEN
instruments as at the end of the reporting period are as follows: T
2014 20144
Financial assets cREE

Financial assets

at fair value
through profit
or loss: Loans and
Held for trading receivables Total
BAFEEH
BRYEZ
SREE . ERR
BEEE FE Uz Fobl
HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BT BT
Financial assets included in FTATEL FUE K E e Uk
prepayments and other receivables BRI S Bl EE = 15,000,178 15,000,178
Financial assets at fair value BAFESEBERIIEZ
through profit or loss TREE 443,068,858 - 443,068,858
Cash and cash equivalents ReMRe%EE - 12,199,764 12,199,764
443,068,858 27,199,942 470,268,800
Financial liabilities A= 5=k
At amortised
cost
b’ FlPE
HK$
BT
Other payables H At fET IR 528,706
Amount due to arelated company < —FEIRIE A A FE 80,000
608,706
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23. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY
(Continued)

2013

Financial assets

23. REHE DRI A ()

20134

Financial assets

at fair value
through profit
or loss: Loans and
Held for trading receivables Total
BATEER
B
58K 2
RKEER FEW I pake
HKS HKS HKS
BT BT BT
Financial assets included in FPATER B R A UK
prepayments and other receivables  FIBZ & REE - 436,717 436,717
Financial assets at fair value BATEERERYE S
through profit or loss TREE 56,797,281 - 56,797,281
Cash and cash equivalents BeMEESE - 201,849,766 201,849,766
56,797,281 202,286,483 259,083,764
Financial liabilities TRBE

At amortised cost

HKS
BT

Other payables H At e IR
Amount due to a related company  [Eff—EREE R R FIA

1,002,797
350,000

1,352,797
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23. FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY 23. XFEER

AREEATIEREELKESRT
B2 RHE :

The Company uses the following hierarchy for determining and
disclosing the fair value of financial instruments:

£ - IBRAEELRERNERMS
MRE CREHE)

Level 1 — Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for
identical assets or liabilities;

FoM - REKFEANEERLRER
ABREHE  BHYAFEFEBEAN
HERM -

Level 2 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input
that is significant to the fair value measurement is directly or
indirectly observable.

F=M - REKFHAERTABREH
& BRRTHEAEBEANMBERII -

Level 3 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level of input
that is significant to the fair value measurement is unobservable.

31 December 2014
201412 A 31H

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
E—& -t =R #at
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
Financial assets at fairvalue 12 A F(EFEBIER
through profit or loss: PR SREE -
Listed: Em
— Equity securities — RGBS 405,546,771 - - 405,546,771
Unlisted JEL™
— Private equity fund - NEREES - - 37,522,087 37,522,087
405,546,771 = 37,522,087 443,068,858
31 December 2013
2013412 A31H
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
E— E-M® E=H wmEt
HKS HKS HKS HKS
7T BT BT BT
Financial assets at fair value 2 A FEF BB
through profit or loss: PR SREE -
Listed: Byl
— Equity securities — A 31,613,970 - . 31,613,970
— Debt securities — B 5 25,183,311 - - 25,183,311
56,797,281 - - 56,797,281

93

FEFTEERERBR AR/ F5 2014



Notes to Financial Statements

B H5 R M ot

31 December 2014 2014 % 12 A 31H

23. FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY (Continued)

Valuation process for Level 3 valuations

Valuations are the responsibility of the Board of Directors of the
Company. The valuation of investment in a private equity fund is
performed on a quarterly basis by management of the Company
and reviewed by the investment committee of the Company. The
investment committee considers the appropriateness of the
valuation method and inputs, and may request alternative
valuation methods applied to support the valuation arising from
the method chosen. Any changes in valuation methods are

23. XFESER(E)

F=RMEENGHERE

HEDTBARREZTENEML - LERK
RESKRENGBEIAARREEES
FET AKBAARAREZESE
Bl - REZBEERMEENEZAMBAER
VREN  REEREREMMGEET A
AXFARBATE R EMERNMGE -
TA/ESZESHERNRFEEER
A RREE -

discussed and agreed with the Company's board of directors.

The investment in a private fund is valued based on its unadjusted
net asset value. It is recognised as a Level 3 investment
redemption of the investment is at the discretion of the private

equity fund.

The movements in fair value measurements in Level 3 during the

Year are as follows:

REESRENREARRRHEEEFE
ELfEE - ARBEIRE T RS
HEeBBRE RARKREERRIRT
—RERE -

AFEESRATFEIEEBNT -

HKS
BT

At 31 December 2013 and 1 January 2014 7R2013F12 A31 B X
20141 A1 H -
Purchase BE 71,382,750
Transfer out of Level 3 to Level 1 BE=MEREEE R (33,882,750)
Total gain or loss recognized in profit and loss MR AR Was s BB AE 22,087
At 31 December 2014 201412 H31H 37,522,087

During the year ended 31 December 2014, the transfer out of Level
3 to Level 1 represent the exchange of shares in a private
company for shares in a company listed on Stock Exchange.
There were no transfers between Level 1 and Level 2 of fair value

measurement.

During the year ended 31 December 2013, there were no transfers
between Level 1T and Level 2 and no transfers into or out of Level 3

fair value measurements.

The Company did not have any financial liabilities measured at fair

value as at 31 December 2014 and 2013.

HE2014F12A31BILEE  AF=
BEREE—RRTH—ELARAN
BHEBRB—BEREBR ETMHARR
ffn e E—HEE_HrEATEESREN
FEE -

HZE2013F12A3TBIEFE E— MR
EE R EEE . NEEREER
EEEE =R NFEFNE -

ARAFR2014F K 2013F12 A31 B
EAEMIEATENENCRIBE -
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24. COMMITMENTS

25.

During the Year, the Company entered into a three-year tenancy
agreement for the lease of its office premises. At 31 December
2014, the total future lease payments under the tenancy
agreement failing due as follows:

Notes to Financial Statements
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24, EiE

RAFE  ARARRHEERAEWER]
N EBR=FZHERZE - R2014F
124318 ' HEHZE T ARRBEERKE
EMIHBERNT

31 December 31 December

2014 2013

2014 20134

12H31H 12 A31H

HKS$ HKS

BT BT

Within one year —FR 582,120 -
In the second year EF 582,120 -
In more than two years BB EE 388,080 -
1,552,320 -

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES

The Company's objective in managing risk is the creation and
protection of shareholders’ value. The ultimate responsibility in
defining and maintaining the Company's risk control framework,
setting the appropriate risk parameters for the Company and in
continuously monitoring compliance of the Company’s portfolio
with the investment objective and policies and investment
restrictions lies with the Board of Directors of the Company, that
will be advised by the Investment Manager.

A risk committee consisting has been formed to monitor the
operational and portfolio risks to the Company. The risk
committee will monitor the Investment Manager including
reviewing whether the investment objective and policies and
investment restrictions are being followed by the Investment
Manager. In case of any deviation, the risk committee will discuss
deviations with the Investment Manager immediately and monitor
any agreed remedial action. For all material deviations the risk
committee will formulate recommendations to the Board on the
appropriate remedial actions to be made. The risk committee will
meet on a monthly basis, or more regularly if a meeting is
requested by any risk committee member.

25.

BHEEBREERRRBER

ARRATWEEEE B R8I R RER
REE ARTAEZSAERAELRE
ARBWEBIEHIER REARAE
BENRRZBEEEERARANKRE
MAERERE B R RBERMRE RS
MRRET REEEABLAESZS
RHEERE -

ARAFREKRIEABREZES  UEREAR
AmEERREAaRR RREES
HERREEREANKR  BERERK
BEREAALERKREBRREENK
ERF - WA TR BRZEEH
Bl I E B A RBEB NI B
TAERENMBRITE - BRAAEEX
MRBEER RREZEeBREFTEIR
HERBUEE fRITEMNEZE - RREZER
EBARE X NEARBRZEEK
BERANGEMERSHARE
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25. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES

25. B AMERE B FERBE (&)

AND POLICIES (Continued)
Equity price risk

Equity price risk is the risk that the fair values of equity securities
decrease as a result of changes in the levels of equity indices and
the value of individual securities. The Company is exposed to
equity price risk arising from individual equity investments
classified as trading equity investments (note 15) as at the end of
the reporting period. The Company’s investments in equity
securities are listed on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange and are
valued at quoted market prices at the end of the reporting period.

The market equity indices for the following stock exchanges, at
the close of business of the nearest trading day in the year to the
end of the reporting period, and their respective highest and
lowest points during the year were as follows:

REEK R

P 2B R i 2 48 A 3R 15 UK K {5
ESEEEYMEUNERESAFE
TRRE R - 73RS HIR AR B A &
MRRERERFREE D EBR 5 BER
& (Ms15) MERNEERE - ARFN
BEESRENEBBRM LD - Rk
HEHRENSREFE -

FRE E/‘tHHEEE’]E’L 25 A& R
:%:EIEEEH# ’ Tﬁljnu %ﬁﬁmmiﬁﬂxm?ﬁ
g URERFAS NGRS R&IER
o

High/low

B/ &

31 December 2014 2014

20145128314 20145

Hong Kong — Hang Seng Index B~ BEEH 23,605.0 25,317.9/21,182.2
High/low

=/ 1K

31 December 2013 2013

2013412 A31H 20134

Hong Kong — Hang Seng Index BB T BEEH 23,306.4 24,038.6/19,814.0

Management's best estimate of the effect on the net assets
attributable to equity holders and on the change in net assets
attributable to equity holders from operations due to a reasonably
possible change in equity indices, with all other variables held
constant is indicated in the following table. In practice, the actual
trading results may differ from the sensitivity analysis below and
the difference could be material.

In addition to the change in equity indices, the sensitivity analysis
below includes the effect of foreign currency exchange rates.

TRINREMBEMEERFIENIE
MTEREHEERRERHAIEA L
P ERERAE ARG TFEERER
BEARBGEFEEZYIIEN&EER
Fre TEBY  BERERZERIEHET
NERESMEMTE  ZRHFEK -

BRIREREE(IN - ATHEEINE
FRINEE REVE o
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25. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 25 BIEEREEBERBEE(E)
AND POLICIES (Continued)

2014 20144
% of reasonable
possible change Change in
of the relevant net assets
Relevant market index Beta benchmarkindex (before tax effect)
HEEEREH
SEAEEBH EEFE2D
HETSEH g Bolkk  (BRBIKZEE)
HK$
BT
Hang Seng B4 0.43258 +10 +17,543,052
2018 20134
% of reasonable
possible change Change in
of the relevant net assets
Relevant market index Beta benchmarkindex (before tax effect)
HAELEIEH
BRI EEH BEFHED
BETISER Eg Btk (BB ER)
HKS
BT
Hang Seng B 0.0993 +10 294,010
Liquidity risk RBESRERE
Liquidity risk is defined as the risk that the Company will MEE SRR DIEARARGEHABITA
encounter difficulty in meeting obligations associated with LR FINEHEEEREERAE
financial liabilities that are settled by delivering cash or another WE AR - RBESREBRIRRAAA
financial asset. Exposure to liquidity risk arises because of the RIFTBE M ESRIRATEEER - BRI
possibility that the Company could be required to pay its liabilities B BEESTRERAANTNRE
earlier than expected. To limit this risk, management monitors the BeAk o

Company's liquidity position from time to time.

97 FEETEERERR AR/ FiR 2014



Notes to Financial Statements

B H5 R M ot 7 ]

31 December 2014 2014 % 12 A 31H

25. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 25 BEEREERERBEK (E)

AND POLICIES (Continued)
Liquidity risk (Continued)

The Company aims to maintain sufficient cash to meet its liquidity
requirements by the ongoing monitoring of cash positions and
future cash flows. The following table summarises the maturity
profile of the Company’s financial liabilities based on contractual
undiscounted cash flows. Balances due within six months equal
their carrying amounts, as the impact of discounting is
insignificant. The table also analyses the maturity profile of the
Company'’s financial assets (undiscounted where appropriate) in
order to provide a complete view of the Company’'s contractual
commitments and liquidity.

The maturity grouping of financial liabilities is based on the
remaining period from the end of the reporting period to the
contractual maturity date. When a counterparty has a choice of
when the amount is paid, the liability is allocated to the earliest
period in which the Company can be required to pay.

Analysis of debt and equity securities at fair value through profit
or loss into maturity groupings is based on the expected date on
which these assets will be realised. For other assets, the analysis
into maturity groupings is based on the remaining period from the
end of the reporting period to the contractual maturity date or, if
earlier, the expected date on which the assets will be realised.

RBEZER ()

ARRFHEERReA AR RKE S
moBERERFAREES  WREER

BB TREARAGHARITHADR
EMARTERABENIMBER - &
RITBFELTEKN - <8R RBIHH
ERENEREE - AR AN ARF]
TREENIHABRCRENR - HE
B) N EBRBARFNE LQAERR

TREBEENIHOENERBEREHR
EAMIMAMNATHE - M%7
AEEENEE AESOEEARA
BEBAINOSEOHA -

BAFEEBERIIRTAZ RS ADN
B REREFDNIERZFEERK
BNME RS - SFAZ AR E A
BENMNDERBRERREANTH
MBS THER(MER) ZEERKER
B EETH A -
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25. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 25. BEREEEERBER (E)
AND POLICIES (Continued)

Liquidity risk (Continued) REBESER (E)
At 31 December 2014 M"20145F12A31H
Less than 1to3 No fixed
On demand 1 month months maturity Total
BER SR1EA 12388 EEEIHA At
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BT BT BT BT

Financial assets included st ATERFIE K

in prepayments and H FEUGRIER
other receivables SREE - - 15,000,178 - 15,000,178
Financial assets at fair BATERBIES
value through profit or FIEMEREE
loss 405,546,771 = = 37,522,087 443,068,858
Cash and cash equivalents H4& R4S 4,815,793 7,383,971 - - 12,199,764
Total financial assets CREEEE 410,362,564 7,383,971 15,000,178 37,522,087 470,268,800
Other payables E e 3R - - 528,706 - 528,706
Amount due to a related e —RER A
company 0B - 80,000 - - 80,000
Total financial liabilities SREES = 80,000 528,706 = 608,706
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25. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (Continued)

Liquidity risk (Continued)

At 31 December 2013

25. B AMERE B FERBE (&)

RBEZER ()

A2013F12A31H

Less than Tto3
On demand 1T month months Total
BB LR TE A 1Z=31EA 4t
HKS HKS HKS HKS
BT BT BT BT
Financial assets included in STATENFIE K
prepayments and other il e 8 v
receivables ERMEE - - 436,717 436,717
Financial assets at fair value 1 AT EFH BB
through profit or loss Rz eREE 56,797,281 - - 56,797,281
Cash and cash equivalents B MIREEE 6,548,161 195,301,605 — 201,849,766
Total financial assets SREERLE 63,345,442 195,301,605 436,717 259,083,764
Other payables HAbERFRIE - - 1,002,797 1,002,797
Amount due to a related B —REEEA R
company FIA - 350,000 - 350,000
Total financial liabilities SRBGERE - 350,000 1,002,797 1,352,797
Interest rate risk AR

Interest rate risk is the risk that the value of a financial instrument
and future cash flows will fluctuate as a result of changes in
market interest rates.

The majority of the Company’s interest rate exposure arises from
cash and cash equivalents and debt securities.

MEEBREEHTARRKKRSREN
EBEEETSMNERETRBOHRE

ARRABAFOMERARRERE KRS
FEREBES
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25. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 25. BEREEEERBER (E)
AND POLICIES (Continued)

Interest rate risk (Continued) Fl == = b (48)

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity of the Company's TRHP EMEHEMESRFBTNE

profit or loss for the year to a reasonably possible change in ET ARARAFEEREFNENAEE

interest rates, with all other variables held constant. The sensitivity IR #&# HEHERRE c AFEEE (BRTAT)

of the profit or loss for the year (before tax) is the effect of the QWFE?E MESNRREBE T5FE

assumed changes in interest rates on: HWRE

—  The net interest for one year, based on the net cash position - HRAWREHARFAFFRERI 2 —
held at the end of the reporting period. FRFEFEE -

—  Changes in fair value of investments for the year, based on - ARBREMARKEGEENXSR
revaluing fixed rate financial assets at the end of the BEZFARENTERZY -

reporting period.

In practice, the actual trading results may differ from the below EE L BRI SEERRLET iR
sensitivity analysis and the difference could be significant. EoAMRREE=ER AEE
Sensitivity of
changes in
Changein  Sensitivity of fair value of
Net exposure basis point interest income investments
WA REANTE
FER HE2H HRE ZBNHBE
HKS HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BT BT BT
2014 20144
Cash and cash equivalents RehRe&EE 12,199,764 +50 +60,999 -
2013 20134
Cash and cash equivalents BehREEE 201,849,766 +50 +1,009,249 -
Listed debt securities FhEBES 25,183,311 +50 - 277,901
Currency risk Bt mEk
Currency risk is the risk that the value of financial instruments will BE¥RRESRTIANEEREXZH
fluctuate due to changes in foreign exchange rates. TR Eh ey @ e
The financial assets and financial liabilities of the Company are ARAlemEERERBEABTRE
denominated in Hong Kong dollars and United States dollars. 7_E7,5‘HE BB ITHEE TN  E5w
Since the Hong Kong dollar is pegged to the United States dollar, RAE - ARBWINERREN - B
the Board of Directors considers the Company's exposure to Iﬁmﬁi%ﬂﬁ%#ﬁ%qﬂfﬂ BREE DT o

foreign currency risk to be minimal; as such no sensitivity analysis
has been presented in these financial statements.
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25. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES

25. B AMERE B FERBE (&)

AND POLICIES (Continued)
Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that the counterparty to a financial
instrument will cause a financial loss for the Company by failing
to discharge an obligation. The Company's exposure to credit risk
is monitored by the Investment Manager on an ongoing basis.

The Company is exposed to credit risk on its cash and cash
equivalents and investments placed with Hong Kong and
Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited, which management
believes is of high credit quality.

The Company's maximum exposure to credit risk in the event the
counterparties fail to perform their obligations without taking
account of any collateral held as at the reporting date in relation
to each class of recognised financial assets is the carrying
amount of those assets as disclosed in the statement of financial
position.

Capital management

As a result of the ability to issue and repurchase shares, the
capital of the Company can vary depending on subscriptions to
the Company and repurchases by the Company. The primary
objectives of the Company’s capital management are to safeguard
the Company's ability to continue as a going concern and to invest
the capital in investments meeting the description and risk
exposure indicated in the Company's prospectus. The Investment
Manager manages the capital of the Company in accordance with
the Company's investment objectives and policies. The Company
is not subject to externally imposed capital requirements.

FERR

EERRIDEARBEHMTANEF S
REBEITEEMERARR AR B
Rk - REEEAGHBEERAR A
EHEERR -

ARAAFREE LBESRITAERA
ANRERREFEUNRKREMAZE
ERk - BEERSHEEERRT -

B FHRGEBTEEETERN @S
HEIFAMIMERR  ARARE
BORREMEENAAZZEKNER
BB RERBBHRARAMEE2%F
BEZEMEE-

BErEE

HRARRAETRBEKN 28
ARBMNERGAALRRELBLOM
Bl  ARABEARERZTEZBRR
BARARZFHELLERENTAARAR
RERMAREBRMEAERR ZIKE
BABRZHES - REEBEAREBEAR
ANRERBRMERREEARANE
Ko RRBAZIMNEDHEINE B AR K
KR
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26. EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

@

(i)

Appointment of Director

Mr. Huang Liangkuai has been appointed as an additional
independent non-executive Director the Company with effect
from 17 February 2015.

Termination of subscription agreement

On 28 January 2015, the Company entered into a
subscription agreement with a subscriber, pursuant to which
the Company has conditionally agreed to allot and issue,
and the subscriber has conditionally agreed to subscribe for
51,500,000 shares at the subscription price of HKS$0.35 per
share. On 12 March 2015, the Company and the subscriber
have entered into a deed of termination pursuant to which
the parties agreed that the subscription agreement shall be
terminated and be of no further force and effect.

27. APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The financial statements were approved and authorised for issue
by the Board of Directors on 27 March 2015.

Notes to Financial Statements

BRI ot

31 December 2014 2014 % 12 A31H

26. HEHBRER

@

(i)

27.

RIEES

BERREAESEARATFIES
SNIEHITE S 520159 2R17
BB -

RIERBH R

M20165F1A28H » AR A H—
ZREHEIMLRE R - B A
DA A G R B AR BT R
fE77 2 B 6 [R = 7888 51,500,000
fEp% 1ty - REEREAR035ETT °
MR2015F3 8128 AR A HER
BRI R IR - Bt - TR
FTRAEREHEHEFKIEETER
BEMBT -

PR R AV HE A

A BHRRDN2016FE3 427 HEESE
b RIRE TR -
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Summary of Financial Information

M ERE

31 December 2014 2014 % 12 A 31H

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the
Company for the last five financial years, as extracted from the

published audited financial statements is set out below.

ARRROAEFBRERZREREERAR
HE (WA HEEESMBRI)FINAOT

RESULTS E S5
Period from
1 February
2010
(date of
Year ended Year ended Year ended Yearended  incorporation) to
31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December
2014 2013 2012 2011 2010
201052518
HZ20145 BE2013F BZoNE BE20ME (MR
128318 12A318 12A318 12A318 F210F
LEE JIR:3:1 EE IEFE 1231 1LHRH
HK$ HKS HKS HKS HKS
BT BT BT B B
REVENUE KA 2,009,770 5,589,483 2,359,868 7824 -
PROFIT/(LOSS) BEFORE TAX BRBATER (B8) 162,709,685 13505512 6,181,434 (49,098 434) (555,377)
Income tax ke (26,371,862) (2,364,725) (1373114) - -
PROFIT/(LOSS) AND TOTAL KRAAEBERREA
COMPREHENSIVE INCOME/ EfER,/BR
(LOSS)FORTHE YEAR/PERIOD  #%#/(B#8) R2HE
ATTRIBUTABLE TOORDINARY W3/ (f518) #f&
EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE
COMPANY 136,337,823 11,140,787 4808320 (49,098,434) (555,377)
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EERAE
2014 2013 2012 2011 2010
20145 2013% 2012%F 201ME 2010%F
HK$ HKS HKS HKS HKS
B BT BT BT BT
TOTAL ASSETS BEAE 477,169,115 261619338 245,720,714 239,094,395 24057317
TOTAL LIABILITIES SfEHE (24,677,703) (7,291,266) (2,533429) (715430) (24,612,694)
452,491,412 254328072 243,187,285 238378965 (555,377)
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